TREATMENT DEPARTMENT STATUS REPORT

Faulkner Lake

Maumelle

Five Mile

White Oak

Jaime Marrow
Office Assistant |1

January, 2019
BOD
5.4 mg/L (30 Max.)

16.6 mg/L (30Max.)

CBOD

11.1 mg/L (25 Max.)

11.1 mg/L (25 Max.)

LIS
4.5 mg/L (30 Max.)

16 mg/L (30 Max.)

LIS
8.0 mg/L (90 Max.)

15.0 mg/L (90 max.)



North Little Rock Wastewater

2019 Year-To-Date Work Recap Report

MH Depth (Ft/In)

C rews: Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
MANHOLE:

Disconnects 0 0
Taps 0 0

Repairs 113 113

# of MH's Grouted 110
#of Coats 0
0
0

# of Bags of Grout

POWER DRIVE:

# of Ft Cleaned

PWR RODDER #1:

# of Ft Cleaned

REPAIR #1:

Repairs

New Manholes

New Lines

Disconnects

Taps

Miscellaneous

REPAIR #2:

Repairs

New Manholes

New Lines

Disconnects

Taps

Miscellaneous

REPAIR #3:

Repairs

New Manholes

New Lines

Disconnects

Taps

Miscellaneous

REPAIR #4:

Repairs

New Manholes

New Lines

Disconnects

Taps

Miscellaneous

TROUBLE:

# of Ft Cleaned

Stop-Ups

Private Lines

Cave-Ins

Flooded Houses

Miscellaneous

Total Calls

111 111

VACCON #1:

# of Ft Cleaned

L0847 | | | | | | | | | | | 198/ ]

VACCON #2:

# of Ft Cleaned

;/s38or | | | | | | | | | | | | 33897 ]

VACCON #3:

# of Ft Cleaned

o512 | | | | | | | | | | | 39512 ]

VACCON #4:

# of Ft Cleaned

L ss3 | | | | | | | | | | | 349 |

VACCON #5:

# of Ft Cleaned

2500 [ | | | | | | | | | | | 2509 ]

TV #1

#of Ft

L0490 | | | | | | | | | | | | 1949 ]

TV #

#of Ft

14,552 14,552




NLR Wastewater
Work Recap by Ward
January-19

C rews: Ward 0 Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Total

MANHOLE:

Disconnects

Taps

Repairs

# of MH's Grouted

#of Coats

MH Depth (Ft/In)

# of Bags of Grout

POWER DRIVE:

# of Ft Cleaned

PWR RODDER #1.

# of Ft Cleaned

REPAIR #1:

Repairs

New Manholes

New Lines

Disconnects

Taps

Miscellaneous

REPAIR #2:

Repairs

New Manholes

New Lines

Disconnects

Taps

Miscellaneous

REPAIR #3:

Repairs

New Manholes

New Lines

Disconnects

Taps

Miscellaneous

REPAIR #4:

Repairs

New Manholes

New Lines

Disconnects

Taps

Miscellaneous

TROUBLE:

# of Ft Cleaned 0 240 240

Stop-Ups 11

37

Cave-Ins

Flooded Houses

0
2
Private Lines 4 10 10
0
0
5

Miscellaneous 33 62

Total Calls 11 18 50 10 17 111

VACCON #1:

#of Ft Cleaned | 0 | 3054 5,485 10,398 19,847

VACCON #2:

#of Ft Cleaned | 0 [ 12693 20016 ] 50 | 138 | 0 [ 33897

VACCON #3:

#of Ft Cleaned | 365 | 0 | 8o [ 25 | 0 | 0 [ 3950

VACCON #4:

#of Ft Cleaned | 0 | 0 | _to8 | 0 | 110 1375 3.493

VACCON #5:

#0f Ft Cleaned 1,103 9,204 2,591 4,923 7,018 25,093

TV #l
i of Ft 1,964 1,897 4747 10,126 19,499
TV #2

# of Ft 739 219 565 365 147 12,517 14,552




(991330 YN ‘@2IAIBS JayIea\ [euUOIRN Jad) L
"p102a1 uo 1s8ybiy ayy se sxyuel (60/L/2T) uosiapuy aule|g3 :Ag paiedaid

SCLPLIFYA B YSIMIY 1BfiNes pue smojuano [enuuy Jo AdOD\IXHOYOSE\N00RNO JUSIUOD\BYIEDION\SMOPUIANLOSOIDIN\[e20T\Bleqddy\UBWLIOQIA\SIOSN\:D

8102 ‘L€ 190 Ny
800z ‘I Atenuep :passpisudbhiifioy 810¢ 110¢ 9l0c 13014 14304 €10¢ ¢l0¢ LL0¢C

0¢c

oy

09

SMOHOND) e

JIBJUIEY] cps

08

# SMOT14d3N0

(0[0]3

0oclL

ovl

[lejurey pue SMO|LIBAQ [enuuy

dV 00y 3117 YlON
18918 M81SB/ %00 8117 YLION



Alewwins MO|LUIBA0 pue ||ejulel

L YA €e 9€ €G 14 €9 00l (44" 16 68 €6 6Ll 47" L0l 68 SMOIHUBAQ
(4 6L £8°2S /€25 9¢°G9 SlL'Ly Sy'E€S 4444 86°'C9 K44 1961 €6°LS S0'6¥ 8/.°6¥ £8°,¢€ 6.°,S llejuiey
6T0C 8T0¢C LT0ZC  910¢ S10C ¥T0C €10¢ 210¢ 1102 0102 6002 800¢ 1002 9002 5002 002
walsAs alnug
2 6 S 14 SMOJHBAQ
4% Ay 7'LS 54 llejuiey
6T0C 8T0C LT0C 9T0¢
uiseg a|jpwnen
4 L 6 S S 13 143 43 9l €C 9l 143 8l 14 9l 4 SMOIHUBAQ
L'y G'l8 '8y S'6v G'99 9'9% ¥'2S Sl ¥'09 Ge 7'0L 6'GS 8'8Y 2'€S 9'Ch €29 llejuiey
6T0¢C 8T0¢ LT0¢ 9T0¢ ST0¢ 7102 €10¢ c¢10¢ 1102 oto¢ 600¢ 800¢ 1,00¢ 900¢ S00¢ 700¢
uised %2310 3|IIN aAI4
4 6 S 6 (14 6 el 14 14 [A> 1> [A> A €¢ 9C L SMOJLIBAQ
1A% 7'¥8 1'99 Z'LS /'89 44 G.°0S 9G'9% 9'89 [A44 Ll 1'09 /L'€S 68 ¥'Z8 6621 llejuiey
6T0¢C 8T0¢ LT0¢ 9T0¢ ST0¢ 7102 €10¢ c¢10¢ 1102 oto¢ 600¢ 800¢ 1,00¢ 900¢ S00¢ 700¢
uiseg YeQ alym
4 [A> 143 6l X4 (14 9¢ €9 19 44 8¢ yA4 ¥9 ¥G 6G ¥G SMOJLIBAQ
9t a7 1'GS 919 ,0°0L Z'vS 8'C9 9y'SY G'9/ S'Ly G'LL 8'19 €99 G'89 K44 G'69 llejuiey
6T0¢C 810¢ L70¢ 910¢ G10¢ 710¢ €10¢ ¢10¢ 110¢ 0T0¢ 600¢ 800¢ 1,00¢ 900¢ S00¢ 00¢

Aunn 193 AN BISEM 00Y BT YLON

uiseq axeT Jauy|ne4



AGENDA FOR
NORTH LITTLE ROCK WASTEWATER TREATMENT COMMITTEE
MEETING

RE:  Committee Meeting
PLACE: Faulkner Lake Treatment Plant
7400 Baucum Pike, North Little Rock, Arkansas 72117
DATE: February 12, 2019
TIME: 12:15 PM

(1) APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 11, 2019 MEETING
(2) CAsH DISBURSEMENTS FOR JANUARY 2019

(3) FINANCIAL REPORT FOR JANUARY 2019

(4) ANNUAL PAGIs DUES

(5) MobIFICATIONS TO THE VACCON/TV BAYS

(6) SyYsSTEM CONTROL AND DATA AcQuisITION (SCADA) UPGRADE

(7) PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT OF SOLAR POWER GENERATION



(1)

NEW BUSINESS

ACTION REQUESTED:

Approval of the Minutes of the January 11, 2019 Committee Meeting



NORTH LITTLE ROCK
WASTEWATER TREATMENT COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF A MEETING HELD TUESDAY, JANUARY 8, 2019

A meeting of the North Little Rock Wastewater Treatment Committee was held on
Tuesday, January 8, 2019 at the administrative offices located at the Faulkner Lake Treatment
Plant.

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Matthews at approximately 12:15 p.m.
Those in attendance at the meeting were Mr. K.W. Matthews, Mr. Ed Nelson and Ms. Karen
Bryant, and in addition, Mr. Jack Stowe, representative from the City of Maumelle. Also in
attendance were Mr. Marc Wilkins, Director, Ms. Gina Briley, Mr. Charles Frost, Mr. Ronnie
Thompson, Mr. Michael Clayton, Mr. Lyle Leubner, Mr. Mark Halter with Hilburn, Calhoon,
Harper, Pruniski & Calhoun, Ltd. and Dawn Harmon.

First, the Committee reviewed the minutes of its December 11, 2018 meeting.
At this time, Mr. Wilkins advised the Committee that he and the staff met Mr. Jack
Wilson, Ms. Valrea Thompson and Mr. Sherrill Harley with regard to their request
to install a grinder pump and service line at the December meeting. Upon further
investigation, gravity service is available in the area at a cost of approximately
$12,000.00 to $15,000 and Ms. Thompson agreed that the cost was reasonable and
something they could work with. Therefore, this issued has been resolved.
Additionally, on page 3, third paragraph down contained a typographical error on
the dollar amount and instead should read:

A motion was then made by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Carman, to
authorize payment to the Municipal League Workers’ Compensation
Trust in the amount of $72,975.00. The motion carried unanimously.

After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Nelson, seconded by Ms. Bryant, to
approve the minutes of the December 2018 meeting with the above change noted.
The motion carried unanimously.

The Committee then reviewed the cash disbursements for the month of
December 2018. There being no questions, a motion was made by Mr. Nelson,
seconded by Ms. Bryant, to approve the cash disbursements for December 2018
reflecting cash disbursements of $3,788,730.68 and fund transfers between accounts
of $3,309,071.26. The motion carried unanimously.



The Committee then reviewed the Financial Statement for the month of
December 2018. Due to the holidays, and the timing of the January meeting, Ms.
Briley attached a Memo to the Financial Statement which stated:

The financial statement included in your packet does not include two
year-end adjustments that I usually make in December. One of these
adjustments is made to the accrued sick and vacation leave accounts
and the other one is made to the inventory account. These two
adjustments typically increase the total operating expenses by around
$40,000 to $50,000. I will try to complete the schedules needed for
these adjustments before the meeting on Tuesday.

I have also not received documentation from the insurance company
concerning what they are going to pay us for the five totaled vehicles
we had due to the fire. Those vehicles have been removed from the site
but are still listed as assets in the December financial statement. I
need the documentation to make the proper accounting entry to
remove the vehicles from our property detail.

With that being said, Mr. Wilkins advised that the accrued sick and vacation leave
and inventory adjustments were made and are reflected on page 10 of the Financial
Statement for December showing a difference of approximately $24,000. Further, it
was noted that with those adjustments being made, page 11 shows a net income for
2018 in the amount of $5,425,306.81. After further discussion, a motion was made
by Mr. Nelson, seconded by Ms. Bryant, to approve the Financial Statement for
December 2018. The motion carried unanimously.

Mr. Wilkins then informed the Committee that the staff received bids for the
South Levy/Indian Hills 2018 Pipe Bursting Rehabilitation Project on Thursday,
December 13, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. The project consists of pipe bursting rehabilitation
for approximately 39,108 linear feet (7.4 miles) of existing 6" and 8" gravity sewer
lines along with external reconnections of existing service lines. The low bid was
submitted by Horseshoe Construction, Inc. in the amount of $4,585,300.50 and the
project will be funded through the 2016 Revolving Loan Fund (ANRC #01068-
CWSRF-L). A motion was made by Ms. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Nelson, to
authorize the staff to award the contract for the South Levy/Indian Hills 2018 Pipe
Bursting Rehabilitation Project to Horseshoe Construction, Inc., of LaPorte, Texas,
in the amount of $3,585,300.50 subject to receipt of authorization from the
Arkansas Natural Resources Commission. The motion carried unanimously.



The Committee was then informed that the staff received bids for the South
Levy/Indian Hills 2018 CIPP Rehabilitation Project on Thursday, December 13,
2018 at 1:00 p.m. This project includes the internal lining of approximately 49,153
linear feet (9.3 miles) of 6", 8", 10", 12", 15", 21" and 24" gravity sewer mains. The
low bid was submitted by Insituform Technologies, LLC in the amount of
$2,882,299.68 and will be funded through the 2016 Revolving Loan Fund (ANRC
#01068-CWSRF-L). A motion was made by Ms. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Nelson, to
authorize the staff to award the contract for the South Levy/Indian Hills 2018 CIPP
Rehabilitation Project to Insituform Technologies in the amount of $2,882,299.68
subject to receipt of authorization from the Arkansas Natural Resources
Commission. The motion carried unanimously.

Mr. Wilkins then advised the Committee that the staff received bids for the I-
40 Interchange (Maumelle) Force Main Relocation Project on Wednesday, December
19, 2018 at 1:00 p.m. The project consists of the relocation of approximately 331
linear feet of 8" PVC force main and incasing the existing force main in concrete for
approximately 165 linear feet to accommodate a new interchange on I-40. The low
bid was submitted by Diamond Construction, Inc. in the amount of $56,323. It was
noted that this project is 100% reimbursable from the Arkansas Highway
Department. A motion was made by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Nelson, to
authorize the staff to award the contract for the I-40 Interchange (Maumelle) Force
Main Relocation Project to Diamond Construction of North Little Rock, Arkansas in
the amount of $56,323. The motion carried unanimously.

In an effort to expedite the process for completing rehabilitation work in the
Lakewood North Hills basin, the staff has advertised for bids for pipe bursting
rehabilitation for approximately 4,562 lineal feet of existing 6", 8" and 10" gravity
sewer lines along with external reconnections of existing service lines. Bids were
scheduled to be opened on Monday, January 7, 2019 at 1:00 p.m. The engineer’s
estimate for this work is $365,000 to $400,000 and included in the 2019 Budget.
Funding for this project will be from general revenues. A motion was made by Ms.
Bryant, seconded by Mr. Nelson, to authorize the staff to award the contract to
Horseshoe Construction, Inc., in the amount of $467,316. The motion carried
unanimously.

The Maumelle Wastewater Reclamation Facility (WRF) utilizes a stationary
sludge dewatering container that dumps dewatered sludge onto a concrete
containment berm. Using a 1995 model Ford backhoe, the sludge is then loaded
into a dump truck and hauled to the landfill. The backhoe is currently the only
means to load the dump truck. Due to age and wear, frequent breakdowns occur as
$11,000 in repairs have been spent since acquiring the Maumelle WRF. Since the
Utility relies on the backhoe for sludge disposal, it is critical to have a working piece
of equipment at all times. The staff would like to replace the backhoe with a front



end loader similar to the unit being used at Faulkner Lake WRF and by the
maintenance repair crews. A new loader can be purchased through the
Houston/Galveston Area Cooperative (HGAC) for $61,605.79, and the 2019 Budget
includes $70,000 for this item. Once the Maumelle plant is decommissioned, the
loader will be brought back to Faulkner Lake to replace an existing Kubota loader
that 1s more than 20 years old. A motion was made by Ms. Bryant, seconded by Mr.
Nelson, to authorize the staff to purchase a new wheel loader through HGAC in the
amount of $61,605.79. The motion carried unanimously.

In April 2018, the Committee authorized use of Taggart/Architects of North
Little Rock, Arkansas for preliminary design services related to expansion of the
collections systems building. The preliminary design phase is complete and the
staff wishes to continue the work and enter into a contract for architectural
services. In accordance with Committee action taken in November 2018, the
proposed architectural services will include replacement of the VacCon, CCTV and
inventory bays which were destroyed in the October fire. An AIA “Standard Form
of Agreement Between Owner and Architect” in the amount of eight percent (8%) of
the cost of work is proposed for the project. The preliminary estimate for cost of
work 1s $1,700,000. The 2019 Budget includes $116,000 for architectural services
and $830,000 for construction to be spent from general revenues. The remainder of
the cost of construction is expected to occur during the 2020 calendar year. After
further discussion with regard to the design and construction, a motion was made
by Mr. Nelson, seconded by Ms. Bryant, to authorize the staff to enter into an
agreement with Taggart Architects for architectural services related to the
Collections Systems Building Addition and Renovations including modifications
related to replacement of the fire damaged facilities. The motion carried
unanimously.

Mr. Wilkins then advised the Committee that the West Levy/212 SID Basins
CIPP 2016 Rehabilitation Project includes lining of a portion of the 30" Rose City
Interceptor at its intersection with the 54" Riverside Interceptor. In order to line
the Rose City Interceptor, sewage-flows in both the Rose City Interceptor and the
Riverside Interceptor must be re-routed during the work. Difficulties encountered
during this operation (high flows, excessive silt accumulations and large chunks of
concrete) have alarmed staff into recommending an immediate assessment of the
Riverside Interceptor. Specialized equipment and methods are available for
internal inspection of large diameter pipelines, and the staff recommends entering
into a change order for this work to include a multisensory assessment of the full
length of the 54" portion of the Riverside Interceptor. The multisensory assessment
will be conducted during live flow conditions and will provide data above and below
the water surface. Above the water surface there will be a high definition
panoramic CCTV scan and a laser profile scan to identify degradation of the pipe
interior. Below the water surface, sonar will measure the depth of accumulated
debris. Data collected during this inspection will be used to identify any problems
requiring immediate attention, if any, and will be useful to staff and contractors



during design and bidding of the future Riverside Interceptor Project. The
estimated cost for this change order is $169,614.70 which will be funded through
the 2016 Revolving Loan Fund Loan. After further discussion regarding the change
order, a motion was made by Mr. Nelson, seconded by Ms. Bryant, to authorize the
staff to enter into Change Order #3 for the West Levy/212 SID Basins CIPP 2016
Rehabilitation Project with Insituform Technologies, LLC in the amount of
$169,614.70, contingent upon receiving authorization from the Arkansas Natural
Resources Commission. The motion carried unanimously.

Next, Mr. Wilkins advised the Committee that the staff received bids for the
Dark Hollow Interceptor Assessment Project on Wednesday, December 19, 2018 at
10:00 a.m. The project consists of condition assessment of large diameter
interceptors using digital HDCCTYV, Sonar and Laser Profiling of approximately
1,546 linear feet of 24" RCP, 5,328 linear feet of 30" RCP, and 5,802 linear feet of
36" RCP. The low bid, and sole bid, was submitted by Ace Pipe Cleaning Inc.
headquartered in Kansas City, Missouri in the amount of $91,513. The 2019
Budget includes $100,000 for this item which will be paid for through general
revenues. A motion was then made by Mr. Nelson, seconded by Ms. Bryant, to
authorize the staff to award the contract for the Dark Hollow Interceptor
Assessment Project to Ace Pipe Cleaning, Inc. in the amount of $91,513. The
motion carried unanimously.

The Committee then reviewed the updated 2019 Budget. The following
changes were made to the draft budget which was presented at the December 2018
Commission meeting:

1. Page 4, the labor expense was updated based on the employees as of
12.31.2018 using a 2.8% cost of living increase instead of 2%; and

2. Page 8, the cash balance as of 1.01.2019 is the actual unrestricted
balance as of 12.31.2018.

There being no further questions or comments, a motion was made by Mr.
Nelson, seconded by Ms. Nelson, to approve the 2019 Budget as submitted. The
motion carried unanimously.

A motion was made by Mr. Nelson, seconded by Ms. Bryant, to excuse the
absence of Mr. Smith and Mr. Carman from the meeting. The motion carried
unanimously.

There being no further action to come before the Committee, a motion was
made by Mr. Nelson to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously, and
the meeting was adjourned at approximately 1:09 p.m.



APPROVED AS TO FORM: RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

K. W. MATTHEWS, CHAIRMAN SYLVESTER SMITH,
VICE-CHAIRMAN/SECRETARY



(@)
CASH DISBURSEMENTS FOR JANUARY 2019

ACTION REQUESTED:

Approval of the Cash Disbursements for January 2019 showing total

Cash Disbursements of $3,819,812.14 and
Fund Transfers between accounts of $3,131,266.67.



Jamoig T4 ‘d114 ‘BNOJIIYS ‘110D Jepoyg ‘Buix Jsuyined

‘BUON GZ18¢€ ‘918D YeQUM ‘Buix ssaudAD ‘qeq 14 ‘pu| suieH ‘3 puejhiepy
‘HO0IQMEQ ‘POOMBNET ‘PU| WINdNEG ‘UILPY T4 ‘BIXIJ ‘BUON E+26€ ‘BUON a+08¢
‘YooigsueT ‘auljjaghepy/Aemoljes ‘uoobe abpn|S 14 “Yied pul Ovp-l ‘Id puelkiey

| abed

‘Id 9911 duld ‘umeT eyaQ ‘IS 14 WIeN Jueld T4 ‘201 AMH s|ig omoe|g 8102l $ 0108|300y BT YUON 28851

08 Wun - 8buey) 10 ‘edueleq ‘salll v Ly vl $ "0U| ‘UOSUIqOY B BI0O| 188GY

Buiures] - 0O “Jeysulwisap - sAep-g waig 1od 00°061 $ uojke|Q |seyoIN 088G

siso/ Ajeses g seA0|D 66°20. $ sjoo] g salddng |edidluniy 797 6.85SY

8¢l# nun abueyd 10 8L 'v. $ 9OINIDG J8X08IN B dbeIED S801 8/8S¥

Speo Q| - LE/Z) - 92/Z| |lypueT] sauld-g 0} 41 djjdwnep BulineH spijosolg 00°00€'2 $ "ou| ‘Buiney ss|ppe uog Awwip 118GV

3IIN-G ¥e sdwnd aBueyd 0} suesd uo]-gz [eyudy "UIN 00 09% $ "OU| BOIMIBS [BJUSY BuelD s,wir 9/8G¥

Buiures] - 0O “Jeysulwisap - sAep-g waig 1od 00°061 $ wny wie G/8GY

dl 8|lswne - pueg Aluosel suol 9¢'glL /¥ /91 $ "0Q pues Asuyar ¥/85SY

geT ‘ulwpy ‘S0 (8102 99Q) SJINISS [BLIONUET (01262 ) $ @oIMBg Bulues| uosyoer €/8SY

(sheq g) seakoldw3 ¢ - asemyog Jasuibug \INMSOJUl uo Buluiel] 00°000‘V $ "0u| ‘@zAnouu| 2/.8Sv

0%l ‘6EL SHUN SHONIL ALDD MaN uo delpp JAUIA 00'769°G $ 0711 solydess Ayunu 1.8SY

Jleday | pie) 19MONG/M JOJeABOXT 8G'/ET $ |eyuay s,wny 0.8SY
‘018 ‘Jawlld 9|dind ‘smoq|3
Buionpay ‘buign] |Auip Jes|) ‘sdwe|D) 8soH ‘Ysnig sl ‘1op|oS UISayY ‘sioyouy

anse|d ‘[yey auedold ‘|eulwla] }sod ‘uolun uoissaidwo) ‘youalp) digeisnlpy 01621 $ alempleH s,wnH 698Gt

Jejsoway | [EOIUBYISIN }OA BUIT L' #9L $ Jebureln 898G

90U84 ‘9|ZZON 1SIM| SSelg ‘9|zzON 9SOH sseug ‘JaAl( 1S0d ‘IN-G/ebnes uiey 86'€8 $ uog % J9||n4 /198G
omcm‘_DD hmv_mu_ IIH Jn_ puoweiqg _>v_o:|_
aIXIY ‘PY BIXIY ‘WopQ/puelebpry ‘pueebpry ‘Apnr/esain3 ‘yoy upio 3 ‘py
upi9 exain3 4g Aydiniy ‘jooydos YBIH ‘¥ Sd ‘€ ' Z Sd dLIN “Jojesay ‘8bing 41N
,mc_c_m._._. dlIN .c_m_>_ dlN w_o_>mZ :>> {|oulweg ..m 9|oulwes ,mocon_ .w___I ommwo

‘s|le4 abesQ ‘UIN |9 WOPQ ‘piojpag MeN ‘Asjjep wnep ‘medenpd :s||ig o083 06°0€L L $ ABisyuz 998G

(spueld |1V Hun dn oeq) julod ajpeld - 18noy Jejnjied 0e'LLg $ "ou| ‘||@QIUN0dsIA G98GY

¥ ‘C ‘1 spiep sieday 9oepung jeydsy $8°1€0°) $ uolONIISUOY pIojuRID 798Gt

Z piepn Bnid ised ‘| piep suonoes adid 66268 $ d1 ute g 8109 €985

oY [9MO] ‘9DIAIS WIoUN ‘B2IAIBS Je|N Ajeemig 99'GLL‘Z $ 0G9# "dioQ sejuIn 29851

suononpaq @a/Aojdw3 - @ouelnsu| [ejuswa|ddng G695 $ 'Ou| 00 8dueINsU| 8417 [enIN|\ uolsog 198G

Aiepeg dwnd Yyoul-g IN-G Z1°1L8 $ siepinQO Aispeg 098G

MV ‘s90IM8S AlD ‘d 114 usamieq wwoD eyea Gy 9zL L $ 181V 69851

d174 0} PAIQ [9ABID %8 BUOIS #8°GLT') $ "ou| ‘sejebalbby sesuesy 848G

(eouelnsu| Joe soueleq) [edlshud sJoyaliaq £Z'982 $ uiesH ishdeg/OHY 1G8SY

@ouelnsu| [eyuswa|ddng - suoponpaq dakoldw 06'92.°) $ oV14dv 968G

oNIL SI9amMod O} PaMOL - €Z1#IUN €9°'161 $ Aianoday |-V 558G

NOILdI¥0S3a LNNOWY 0Ol 319VAVd #
MO3IHO 0

6102 ‘1€ Arenuer
SININISHNIGSIA HSVYD
HIALVMILSYM MD0d 3T1LLIT HLHON



Z abey

020Z/62/1L N1y} abpug g peoy Aunod 1ysejnd puog MOY 00°00S $ Ajeing v N O £165Y
810z Jequieos( xe] esiyoueld 0Z'€LE 2. $ %00¥ 11T YLON Jo A1ID Z165Y
810z Jequiede( xe 8siyoueld $G8eeLll  $ ajjpwnel jo Ao T16SY
Sd A8jlen ajjswnepy
‘splelieg 99 ‘Ue9 plojpag MeN ‘UsH A\ BOUILBS ‘UBD 3 BjouIWSS S|l SBD ZS'G8 $ ABisu3 julodielus) 0165V
S9]e]Ss3 [swwlel] - |[BAST 9|qgisiswgng o_umuwo._U\AI 10°€./ w ou| .EOO.wom.__Dco_HmF_oa:,Q 60651y
6L/8L/L - 6L/6L/Z) dLTd ®dIneg suoyd AlYyuoN Sy vzl L $ 1891V 806G
G ‘v ‘L Spiep) ‘siieday 66'2€C $ "0U| ‘Wi Jn] @ POS Sesuely L06GY
108lold Bunsing adig poomaye - py [eba7 2202 $ a)19zeo) jeIooWwa (] sesueyly 9065V
| PIBAA - mc__zmI ysnilg /¥'¢q w pelv]| hmc:\wOQEOO uedlswy G06SY
6102/90/1 Buipu3 pouad Aed sexe] |joihed 60'Z/L'8E  $ usodeQ xe] ||0iked T0-dd
6102/90/1 Buipuz poued Aedq suonnqguuo) juswaliney 5 18.°c $ SUONN|OS JuBWaINSY SPIMUOIEN TO-LVN
6102/90/1 Buipu3 pouad Aed sysodeq eakojdwz Lg0LS'Y $ uolun ypaI) [eldepa sesueyly T0-4V
6102/90/1 Buipu3 polued Aed - @akojdw3 | - welboid SsaU|loM £6'1 $ Jaus) Ajunwwod YN Y065t
61/90/1 Buipuz pousd Aed -juswysiules) ueoT juspnig [eiepa 8skojdw 0z'z9) $ uoneonp3 o 1deg SN €066
6102/90/1 Buipuz pousd Aed - sjuswAed poddng pjiyo sesueyly 00°zGh $ Nas esnoybuues|d 3800 Z065Y
6102/90/1 Buipuz pousd Aed Buinig sjqejeyd esholdws 0022 $ Aep payun sesuexly jo pesH T06SY
6102/90/1 Buipu3z pouad Aed suonnquuog @afojdws 00°'S. $ S80S [eloueul4 asuduBWY 0065
S10}08uUuU0) m_m:< _w_mow
.w_wccmco 10|S _wEZ .w._w_._wm>> X9H ,._wEEmI Me|D ,‘_man_bw X3|j9y _oam._. o093 2€°60¢ mw ZQQ:W 0111093 9|esa|OyAA 668G
BlIIN-G Y003 eQ ‘|00 J8HOYS ‘umeT ejed ‘NeQ SHUYA BNOIIYS :S|Iiq JeleM SLY6S $ san 868G
610z 0) @oueinsu| Ayiger pue Apadoid 00'666°LLL  $ yueg- s n L68SY
BuugaH - LLL#NUN LLGL $ D77 ‘oudoni 9685
S]o)der g Uo paJsploiqug O@On_ 66°GY w gelvl| _wow_‘_a._oucm puelaying G68GY
mes 1O InD Jo} w‘_oomaw .oc_com_\/_ QEN._. .__NQON_ c1'901 w alempleH >®_Cmuw 7685V
SdO - S[emo] plod-0 61°L¥L $ "ou| ‘sjeojwsy edg £685Y
L 8]0AD Jequisde( S)JUNoJoY SeIdy ueluny pajiilg 00t+0‘L $ LLZ# ousIq Jlemes Z68SY
Buiutel] - 09 ‘Jeysulise N - shep-z weiq Joed 00°061) $ Agaey noos 168SY
8102/12/ZL ybnoly) sedinies [BUOISS8JOId - Bulisa | eyows @ dsu| sjoyuely LU0D S6'886'CL  $ "ou| ‘dnoio NIy 068SY
asealn - SNpeo ||BYS 8L vl $ "ou| ‘wnajolied Ajenp 6885Y
Z P\ BU0D g JBsly ‘| piep Bury speio {1818 $ juswdinb3 g yoni| siomod 88851
dl llswne - ;swAjod pinbil  00°007'G $ "ou| ‘08)Aj0d /88GY
Jauo | cm>O ,w_®>>o._. o][e] ]}
-0 _ootoo ,w‘_wam_cmo Jasweal)d _w._mﬁm_cmo mesw Sm._aw _ow>|_ .‘_Occm_n_ >_£co_>_ 99'9¢¢ w S]10Npold {d14O snjied 088GY
Z PIe\ BUOD B J8sIY ‘| pJep) Bury epeis €8°GGE $ yue] ondag 8je1ouo) uosisied G88GY
BunesiN 81/LL/ZL S8youNT SBRIWWOD 02 °E6 $ 071 ‘elsued ¥885Y
L/#3un Aiepeg 98'v6 $ $810)S aAowolny Ajj19y,0 £885Y
NOILdIYOS3A LNNOWY Ol 319VAVd #
MOIHD MO

6102 ‘1€ Arenuer
SININISHNIGSIA HSVYD
HIALVMILSYM MD0d 3T1LLIT HLHON



¢ abed

G pJe ) Jieday - puag ‘dwe|) 8|2d1) ‘OAd 62°8G) $ Aiddng 1 adid uiayinog SY65Y
d11d 0} paiaAlleQ [9ABID @ ¥O0Y #8°9GZ°L $ Bunyoni] Jawing Auuog Yv6SYy
t 91040 "08(Q SIUN02DY 810y UeAuUNY Pa|liq 0G°SHZ $ L LZ# uIsIg James 1947461514
8102 JaqweodeQ - JuswAhed puog aixiy 0G'L/EL $ isnu| ejesodio] suolbey A 741517
4 [euld g susiwil L2V $ saujsnpu| siAing Tv6SY
Sia)|I4 pue agn || L# Jun ‘/# doyxoeq ‘94 soyxoeg Jiedas o} JogeT @ sieg 61'GiL g $ juswdinb3 1 yoni| siomod 0)741°14
28 | piep siieday - MId 97'¥S $ $8.10Y 3eQ 1sod 6E6SY
‘sabpupen Jouo] ‘yaselq oibepy ‘sadip) ‘wooug ysnd ‘oquio) woolg/ued isng +vzZ'69¢°L $ sjonpoud 92140 snpad 8€6SY
sjemo | Jaded ‘sje Jley ‘sisuueld ‘s||ijoy Jepudie) ‘sileyd a0 MeN ¥ v0°LLL°L $ jodaQ @240 LEBSY
Z09/uobly ‘uobly ‘susjhieoy ‘UsbAXO €0°18 $ ‘00 Alddng Buiplop ¥IN 9€6SY
G¥L# LINN 1daq@jutepy dwnd - 92X 19PON 1X0GZ-4 P104 00°G2Z'92 $ "0 ujoduI pio4 albe|y GE6SY
(001q Joyouy Jojelay IN-G Joj) Bulyyesys
‘SpniS ‘sjig ‘SMaJdS JOUBIXT ‘SOPOBYS JOYOUY [99)S SSO|UlE)S OlWela) dUI09|T 66 65€ $ S,8M07 V€65V
Juled Bunie|y usai @ SUUM LE'ELY $ sjoo] %@ salidddng |edioluny 1871 €E65Y
Juswublly - 621 HUN GZ'S/ $ 9OINIBG J8X08IM B dbeIED S0 2e6SY
speo /- 61/20/L0- #0/10 |IlypueT] sauld-g 0} 41 djjdwnep BuiineH spijosolg 00°0L9°L $ "ou| ‘Buiney ss|ppen uog Awwip TEBSY
Jeday g pJepA - JojeAedXT QG LLL. $ [ejusy s,wnH 0ge6SY
S9YBIS pue 90ud- IS ‘slequinN JAUIA ‘semeA meals ‘1eAelds L0261 $ aljempleH s,wnH 626SY
ainses|\ ade ]
‘sape|g Annn ‘ajuy Buipjod ‘ejeuinD ‘saliddng BupuomaN ‘uiwpy/saliL bullied €€ v16 $ S90IAI8S JIpal) JodaQ SWoH 8265V
Buntiop 10N abed pue sanss| uoisus)x3 suoyds|o] /6°L0€ $ IOH L26SY
 819AD 09 SUN0dY pa|ilg 88'651 ‘L $ ouIsIq Jamag abpry [aAels 9¢s6vY
uoIsualx3 ‘Malog ¥oa( ‘sabuodg Buipues ‘jied [B9 | ‘ued isnQ ‘elempleH 9SIIN G8°182 $ 9|jswnef\ uog pue Jsjin4 GZ6SY
S8l mdu ¢ - 621 Hun 90°G.9 $ 9JINISS Bll] 199]d 1443514
¥oa1) de9 :0uPd[3 £0°68L $ aAeladoo o1309|3 sii4 €265
¥ 81940 09 3 £ 9]9AD AON Pa}09||00 994 399d 00°000‘Y $ pieog salljioe 4 suspleo exainy 2e6SYy
‘a0e|d SJ9)SeN ‘Sd @ouaimeT yled
|elsnpu| suljjo) ‘SISSE\ SJuUno) ‘sauelely ‘saunog ‘splaliieg 0D ‘Z# dIsse
SJUNOYD ‘Z# S|ISWNE ‘UNY JSAIY M|OHON ‘sopesied ‘Jsjua) umo] :s|iig o383 656151 $ ABisyug TZ6SY
Apn)s uonesuadwo) jo uonesedald Gz'Zee' Ll $ O71d ‘'do3 026SY
dl4 81eo Ul - 8dIMISS [I8D SG6°61 $ "ou| ‘Bupiooq 6T6SY
xe| Buiployuyi )es - 810z Jequiaoed 00091 ‘1) $ ulwpy @ @oueuld jo ydaQ 8T6SY
J81doo ulwpy soueusjulely AlYUON #S5°2G) $ xewejeq LT6SY
Jusweaiby souBUSBUIB BDIAISS ||N4 - JOJeIBUDD) XOO|IM 0L°96Y $ 07171 YInoS-pIA sulwwing 9T6SY
(uBisa onewayoS/IopPoN dlinelpAH walsAs Jamag ajepdn
9 MBIADY) YeQ iU O} UOISIBAIQ d||swne\ - 8L.0Z AON SDIAISS [BUOISS8j0ld 00°000°ZL $ "ou| ‘ssedulbuz Js1D ST6SY
G'z'l spiep - slieday Jeydsy 9z'/09 $ 00 uofonisuoy plojueld 71657
NOILdIFOS3A INNONY Ol 379VAVvd #
MO3HO Pl

6102 ‘1€ Arenuer
SININISHNIGSIA HSVYD
HIALVMILSYM MD0d 3T1LLIT HLHON



¢ abed

18 G S90AD 09 pejos||00 994 199d 92°6/9'0L  $ ousIq Jemes abpry [eAelo 865V
ssald }jog Jo} JoyesH 01°/61 $ D71 “AIV pue jesH Js}salio L16SY
L 819A0 08Q peyos||00 8941990 00°'S.Y $ pieog salijioe4 suspies) exyaing 965V
usalosieg 3eQ Up 6.:\:03‘:w deQ Um nwcooamn_ 3eQ ym
‘dL XeO SHUM ‘G9¢ AMH ‘Z# Aemabpug ‘spoopn ajjswnely ‘Aeg [eyshiD :ouo9(3 6¢°809'vL  $ ABisyuz G/6SY
Jaidon Buussuibug soueusyulely AlYIUON +8°0. $ xewejeq .65y
Z PIe\ - slleday Jleydsy GZ'6LG $ "00 UOONIISUO) plojuel) €165V
aouelnsu| [ejuswalddng - suononpag oaAojldw €£89'ZEy $ a1 |eluojo) 2.6SY
sdO ‘Juiey dwnd ‘qeT - syauiqe) piv 1sdid |18y L9621 $ seu) T.6SY
610z Ateniga - oulD ssau|lBM 05°LSZ'E $ ylesH Joy Jsjue) abueyn 0,65V
uiseg 86ing siojelay WNe - 8|qeD [99)S SS8|UIB)S ,00G 9L v.P $ "0u| ‘YSN X8jus) 69651
810Z JoqWianoN - sea4 Bullig Jeyemalsep\ 9L°Gee'Ly  § e\ sesueyuy [esjua) 89651
us9 gd aIxig ‘ue9 |adey)
uoier) ‘uen supi9 exaing ‘uen 3J deo ‘qe 14 ‘dL1d ‘UIBZ "M LOZL Siild SeD 67 ¥68°E $ ABisuz julodislua) 1965
Buipiing 3%9SD 104 sway| [euoluer 0Z'9LE $ Ajddng Jojuer umolg 99651
sileday ¢ pJep) jlos dot 8¢'/Z $ sajuedwoy [eudlel\ g9g G965Y
HO-INys oJny BULOYD - sMed G/ '¥9Z $ "0U| W02'j08IIqUOleWOINY Y965t
6L/0L/L - 8L/LLIZL d114 @dIneg suoud 91°2L.L )L $ 191V £965Y
6102 senQ diysiequalN 00°006 $ "00SSY JJe N\ [Ny Sesuely 29651
Jaquiada 894 ||leD _\Cm:cmﬁ 2994 JaquiB|\ G/'¢G¢E mw Ewuw\Am [leD auQ sesueily T96SY
9sSuUa2I7 s,ueldllds|g 00°09 mw JogeT Jo .HQQD sesuejly 09651
mm._mcow_h_ ON }Jlwiad - pY _mmmn_ 06°¢. mw 9J}9Zeo) Jeloows(d sesueily 65651
Jo|les] Apaqi o) 6# JoleiL - MOL €9°L6) $ Kionooey |-y 85651
Jleday dwnd youi- 62182 $ "ou| ‘suonnjog Buueyemeq walhx LS6SY
auIq xe4 jde@ Bulig €0°z9 $ wesaJiSpuipy 9565
uonejoy a1 g 8bueyo 10 - 611 HUN 98°EYL $ agn Ayir/-ou| ‘suoeougnT e GG6SY
8102 Joquiaoe( - dxeT Jauyned |esodsiq pljosolg /zZ'€2L'9z  $ Juswabeuely ajsep 75651
LyL# ‘vyL# SHUN :SUOCDOBA MON 00'8€Z°LL8  § "0U| UOD-0BA £965Y
ge1 14 ‘'dLl7d ‘dl elswne 4g Aydiny s|iig Jelep 617122 L $ sdan 25651
MLOd IIN-G Apnig sulioly) o10eds a)S 8L/0g/L L- 82/0L S82IAISS [euolssajold 00°0SS'C $ %84N00Y/J18|yos! L 1965Y
deos ysep JeD [suedoid 08292 $ juswdinby | B | 05651
Jajswowiay | .mocm_mm ,momc‘_sn_ SN\ - suonelqiied >_‘_m®> 9/°¢86 w co_um._oa._oo 9|eds Ewuw\Aw 676Gy
)00]S Jule|y QE:n_ 013 ,wHDCv_00|_
.wHDZ ysiui4 xoH h.w‘_osw.m>> Y007 .m._ocwm>> le|d ,w>>®._ow QNO X9H JO Juswliossy /0°'GEE w “ou| _.OO MBI0S R ]j0g Jels 376Gy
189|000 JBJe M Z6°9G $ alempieH As|uejs Ly6SY
S|oMO | QD QOn_ R |Ind J8ua)d .m:wm_._. 19|I0] nou‘mbcoocoo wniuell | ,._mzwmm_ﬁ_ 1opO wm..vN.v.v w “ou| .w_mo_Ewr_O maw o976SY
NOILdIYOS3A LNNOWY Ol 319VAVd #
MOIHD MO

6102 ‘1€ Arenuer
SININISHNIGSIA HSVYD
HIALVMILSYM MD0d 3T1LLIT HLHON



G abed

¢ PIEAA - mc__smI ysnig ¥1°¢G w “ou| _mc:wOQEOO uedlswy OTO09Y
wooy Jeindwo) uiwpy 48ys doey .61 LL'6S $ Buliged peoueapy 60097
Joamoys Buiping sdO |spoway G6'661) $ suofjeAousy @ Bulool4 vy 8009%
6102/02/L Buipug pousd Aed sexel] |jolhed €2'9L0'vy  § ysode( xe] |[olhed 20-dd
6102/02/L Buipuz pousad Aed suopnquiuo) juswainey 5 18.'c $ SUOIIN|OS JudWaIRY BpImuolieN Z0-1V¥N
6102/02/L Buipuz pousd Aed sysodsq @ahojdwz LE0LG'Y $ uolun }paIY |esepad sesuexly Z0-4v
6102/02/L Buipu3z pousd Aed - 8akojdw3 | - weiboid sseu|lop €61 $ Jejuad Ayunwwiod YN L009%
61/02/1 Buipu3 pouad Aed -juswysiules) ueo Juspnig [eiepa eahojdw3 Ge'691 $ uoneonp3 jo ydeqg SN 9009
6102/02/1 Buipuz pousd Aed - sjuswAed poddng p|iyd sesuexiy 00°ZSt $ NAs asnoybulies|y 3S00 S009Y
6102/02/1 Buipuz pousd Aed bBuinig s|qejuey) sakoldw 00°¢S $ Aepn payun sesuerly Jo pesH 7009¥%
6102/02/L Buipuz pousd Aed suopnquuo) sskoldws 00°G.L $ S9OIAI9S [eloukeul] asuduBaWY €009
lllypue] seuld om] O} 1 o||swney woJj spijosolg jo [esodsiq 90'¢6£'0L  $ Juswabeuely sjsep Z009%
BL/LE/L - 8L/LIZ DVAH geT - Juswaaiby soueusiulel\ 8€°/1Z'C $ "ou| ‘Auedwo) apepp T009%
ZrL# ‘SyL# SHUN SUodoeA MON 00'8€Z°LL8  $ "0U| U0D-0BA 0009
uonippy bulpjing wajsAg suonos||og - JuswdojeAae ubiseq ‘ubiseq onewayds 05 /vL'gz  $ sjo8)iyouy Hebbe| 6665
G
pIEM Jleday jeydsy ‘¢ pJepn Jieday 8181ouod ‘d174 0} PaIaAlleQ [9ABID @ 300y 0L Li6'L $ Buryonu Jswing Auuog 8665
1 919AD Jaquieoe( sjunodoy saloy uekuny pajiilg 00°¥ZE $ LLZ# ousiq Jlemes 166SY
juswdinb3 umeT ayeT Jayned - IO ‘Juswa|3 Assy ‘si8lld 6562 $ Jojoel] As|lep Jenry 96651
Joge ‘ll0
‘abpupe) ‘sis)|id/sieday LZL-XY ejoqny ogeT IO ‘sid)jid/sieday Z1L# HUN $9°0EY ) $ juswdinb3 @ yoni| siemod G665
¥ pJep sieday - HIQ 8€°/¢ $ S2.0V 3eQ 1sod 7665t
IIN-G - Wio4 8)2Iou0) Joj S[elslel G6°97¢ $ Aiddng aqn] 3 adid €665
saepeg ‘sqing y00|0 ‘@10 bullig J0) ue ‘@10 Buljig Joj sdwels ¢/°G9) $ yseo Aned 266SY
J|jeg L ulg ,wcooaw Q¥ SOAIUY
anse|d ‘sdn) joH ‘sdiD Jaded pajeod [AUIp Mu| sulyoely abeysod ‘1aded AdoD 9z v/ 1L $ S10NpOoId 9910 SNpad 1665V
1O 4010 G/°02 $ $9.0}S dAoWOoINY A||19H,0 0665
sesse| Ajojes 65981 $ "00 $8|eS SPISYUON 68651
sdwnd Sy o|lswnel - 8AuQ Aousnbaiq ajqenen //'1G8°L $ yliuswa|g yemaN 88651
aouelnsu| dwoD SINIOA 6102 00°G/26°2. $ }snJ] uonesuadwo) siaxIop) anbesT jedidiuniy 1865V
mc_c_m‘_._. a2lemjjog - @c_v_._mn_ ,wm.mu _._mO |ejuay - juswesinquiisy v1L'v/.1 w CO;m_O |2 y2IN 986G
Bnid Jo1e M\ 91 0G 18°9SS $ JoJeMUINN %00y Bl G865
Joyouy Jojesay IN-G - dwnig Bupoolg |Sd 000€ SZ'+9L $ 8joI0u0) Are ¥86St
SI0}09|Jo /M SBUOD Dljel| ‘SBA0|D) JaAl( ‘SOA0ID Wied Joqdny 96'L19°|L $ s|oo % salddng |ediouniy 7197 €865
SpPeoT 0l - 6L/77L/L0- 60710 Il4pue] sauld-z 0} 41 djpwne|y Buiney spijosolg 00002 $ "ou| ‘Buiiney sajppep uoq Awwir 28657
Jleday jei4 - gL WUN 06°L2 $ all] ojejsiou| 1865
allH MaN - 3o8ay)d cho‘_mv_omm leuiwl) 00°¢e w sesueyly JO YJOM)}aN uoljew.oju| 086SY
Sd Julod puowel( - |9n4 [9sal 20°081 $ "ou| ‘uewdey) g usaI9 6,657
NOILdI40S3a INNONWY Ol 319VAVd #
MO3IHD MO

6102 ‘1€ Arenuer
SININISHNIGSIA HSVYD
HIALVMILSYM MD0d 3T1LLIT HLHON



g abed

61/9/2 - 61/L/1 11g duoyd 1190 AJYUOW /Z'GGS‘L $ SSO[SJIAN UOZIIDA Zro9y
Z pIe\ - Jleday yeydsy ge'9g/ $ adeospue SN T¥09%
uppy Bpig sAs ||0D Juswdojeasq ubise@ 00°0¥2°0L  $ Sj08)Iyoly Hebbe | 0r09%
slojesadQ - sano|9 d|qesodsiq G8'GE6 $ [eolwdyd M % S 6€097
LLL# HUN Yea diy Jleday ‘0L Jajies] Bulip Jreday 857092 $ juswdinb3 g yonJ1 siemod 8€09Y
slledoy ¥ ple M - HIQ 927G $ $810V YeQ 1sod LE09Y
sleg da)g ‘sje|\ AYsnH ‘Je\ pag 1aqadny - Gy L# HUN LG'E€EL $ asnoyase\ onaL dn yoid 9€09¥
sabpupe) yu| ‘Jepusle) 3saq ‘||joy JapulAeq ‘Iejuld ‘suoodg onseld 722G $ sjonpoud 8d10 snied GE09Y
Bpig jute|y dwind piesuely Joos-oy 00°L62'L $ SuolN|OS SWOH @ Bulyooy ‘|'d €097
VAVOS - S8HS IUWQ 9 90IAIDG SSOIBIIN JBOA-L 000026l  $ aSIuWO £€09Y
Buipling Jemo|g T4 - 1918|\ |sued |eubiq [eubisiNi 00°G1L9 $ "ou| Bunesulbug ebawQ 2e09v
Sd X02JIM - lIg 9U}09|3 66'ELE $ O309|3 300 SWIT YHON TE09Y
BUO pOLIdd - SBUYIIMS Suel| @ U9 XNy 8L0Z 00°0LL‘8 $ "0U| [e0}00|3 9sedaN 0€09¥
610z uer - |[eba piedaid @aholdwy GG 6¢l $ plaIys [ebe 62097
Bunsa] | sse|] - quiey abes|iN ® [BBN 28°/8 $ sauor ejkey 82097
sepoQ Jes|) ‘19| 8poD ‘@buey Ja)i4 % IO - €64 HUN 9¥'8SL $ 90INIOG JX0BIN p obeles seor 12097
speoT 8l - 61/1.2/L0- G1/10 lIljpue sauld-g 0} 41 djjlswnely BulineH spijosolg 00°0vL ‘v $ "ou| ‘Buliney se|ppe uog Awwip 9209%
Bunsa] | sse|D - quisy abes|IN ' [eSN 90°201 $ uopequied uoser G209v
‘B}S dwing @ouaime] - dwind Japuus 00°0SZ‘L $ ou| ‘A|lddng % juswinisu| 2091
s109loid |e10adg ‘Jauie}ay ‘uonedo|sIy Juswase] JelelN 00°89Y°‘Z $ unoy|e) B psunid ‘1adieyH ‘uooye) ‘uingiH €209%
2€ % L# AL - Wi + Assy ajqeD g¢'1/8 $ syonpoud Aynn preusy 22097
ealy [901ed Sd Aeg |eysAig osa( |eba g soM Aeains 00°0GL L $ $9)e100ssYy JeH 12097
Bpig abpn|s Asellixny uinjey d114 - 1exoelg Buunol g JajesH #1°118 $ JeBures 0209%
8102 Joquiaoa( JO YO\ s|jan [9sal( @ SUIOSED /1'9€8°L $ uew|an4 6T09Y
S|oJjuo) ‘_GE\A_On_ Ssald
yeg 14/°19eD ZSZ S ‘INH..L (Bpig Jemolg T14/18)sa] Hod ‘9|qeDd ZGZ MM du}
Jo Yo0D/i8wojsuel | ‘BINPOJA Ul Bojeuy ‘sinpoly Indu] ‘anpojy INdinQ ‘eseg 10|S 01°9G6 $ uonewoINyz3 81097
Nwuad T4/31LUN
+ 9]el}IN .wuwm._. w:._OLQwocn_ ERE| ”coommn_ deQ c>>\w®_QEmw wmv:_w gqel 91°'9%6 w >CNQEOO S9JIAISS |ejusWwuolIAUg /TO9Y
seyeT unsny ‘|adeyQ uojke|D :sjlig oL309|3 8.°88€ $ ABisyuz 9T09¥
wlaj] uuo)p
‘SSe|9 asn4 ‘wis | Jadwnr ‘eixy WYQ 0GZ Soy ‘UNDIID  HOWIA - %001S Nd  99°9G€ $ £9%850¢ soluosa|3 Aey-161a GTO9Y
suone)s Mo 4oy sdnoeg Aiepeg 99'Ly9 $ julod Bunosuuo) 7109%
Bpig auuoly) IN-G ‘Bpig suloyD T4 ‘Bpig Jemolg 14) - UOUMS JOd “Jeidepy
11emM\ _Hmw eljawe) }a|ing Jow elswe) swog SEQ:W Jamod 30d nwb.:mO @O_mc< 0066/ w “ou| .Ooﬁcwm cT09Y
Juswdinb3 ABAING - 80IAIBS [19D €G°1L9 $ AMigoN 181V 21097
d174 0} paianljeQ |anel ' 8UolS L0806 L $ "ou| ‘sejebealBby sesuesly TT09%
NOILdI¥OS3a LNNOWY Ol 319VAVd #
MOIHO 0

6102 ‘1€ Arenuer
SININISHNIGSIA HSVYD
HIALVMILSYM MD0d 3T1LLIT HLHON



J abed

610z Areniga4 @oueinsu| yyesH 8akojdw3 86°0.2°89 $ pund yyeusg yijesH [edioiuniy 0,09%
d114 ebeweq ali4 0} eng abelioig ‘Buiues|n ‘Buinoy ‘Buoed z0°26S5‘8S $ sisieloads Jajsesiq 0418 6909%
slo|qe] Jomas
pay Jybug ‘sjoog esuy ‘sjoog diH ‘seA0|9 DA BuoT ‘siepng puowelq 88 .9 98'28.'Y $ sjoo] g salddng |edidluniy 1587 8909
INd % e - sbeg yoe|g ‘sjomo | p|os) ‘siedIp GE'6GY $ '00 Alddng g Jaded 1oy /909%
3|NPOJA [0J3U0D Ulel] Jamod Jledsy - yZL# WUN SZ'¥6E’L $ 90IAIBS JoXDBINN @ BbeIED S.900 9909¥
SPeoT 1 - 61/82/L0- €2/10 ll4pue] sauld-z 0} 41 d|jpwne|y Buiney spijosolg 00°0ZE‘S $ "ou| ‘Buiiney sajppep uoq Awwip S9097
cel#Iun yoled 06°Le $ all] sje)sisu| 79091
Jueld 74 - dULO|YD SJBUIEUOD UO] | X Z 9/2°LLEL $ S[edlwsy)d sosoieH €9097
6 91040 "08(Q SjUNO2VY pa|iig 189228l $ ouIsIq Jameg abpry [aAelD 29097
Aojle wneyy ‘pioypag meN ‘UIN |9 WopQ ‘s|ied ‘s|iiH 8besO
‘eouod ‘3 ‘M joulwag ‘AxonT aixiy ‘pY BIXiY ‘@xeT ||IH ‘MedenDd ‘Yi9y exaing
‘Apnr e)8In3 ‘Juow|yolN ‘SjelISPIN Jenuold L9l AMH aixry ‘ebpry [edey)d
‘@1e9 IN-G ‘Bydiel ‘N IIN-G ‘[Pwwel] “S IIN-G ‘L#MD IN-G ‘YUl IN-G 09913 9¥°/6G°ZE $ ABisyuz 7909V
IpNYy Juswalelg [eroueuly g0z bullig ssaibold 00°000°C $ 071d ‘do3 0909%
SauIT JoMas 10} Jaues|D |elysnpu] 00°0%9 $ "0u| ‘|0JU0) 100y S9N 6509V
LEL# 1un 0} ebewe( a4 Jieday g aoe|dey 89601 $ SuoIsIaAu0) }] doug 8G09%
aoueudjuIel\ pue Bujnsuo) JJomaN ¥ Jeyndwon - 6L0Z Atenuer 00°000°S $ wosues 'y ||e1eq /609
d.114 - si8jeay @ sjunojy ‘sioje|nbay wnndoep sulolyd Zz L0°LEL'S $ XIOAA |04u0D 9609V
(ponouddy £1/LL/p) @ieus MYTIN/Ieldod 8 Uiy "3 uoisus)xg ulely 1emas 0L 00°00Z°9¢ $ %00y 8317 YHoN jo Ao GG09Y
abuey) 110 L/# NunN ‘8|qe) uolssiwsuel | pue abuey |10 8/# NUN S €92 $ Jledey |esalq [elus) 75091
SUD|IA - uonedisibay doysylopn Buuds 007051 $ "00SSY SJobeuely Jojemalsep) B JoJe M\ HY £G09%
BL/LL/L -8L/ZLIZL WeISAS yAVOS 92IM8S (18D AIYWON ' L2 $ Aliqon 181V 2S09Y
MV ‘s80Ines AlID ‘d 114 usamiaq wwo eyeq Gi'9zL‘) $ 181V TS09Y
61/0L/2 - 68L/L1/1L d1714 @01n8S auoyd 9G°681°L $ 181V 0S09Y
d] 74 01 paleAlep |oABIS) pue 8uolS 85189 $ ‘ou| ‘sejebalbby sesueyiy 67091
S|00] pueH ‘iey) Aiejoy ‘suig Bulusalog ‘sjauiqe) 9|4 - SS99X3 1,A09 00°L9 $ 16\ Aousbiow3] o 1deq HY 8%709%
sdwnd paa4 a6pn|S 4174 40} Hed 0G'L6L $ ABojouyos | [elysnpu| paljddy Ly09¥
aouelnsu| [eyuswalddng - suononpaq aaholdw 06°9/8°L $ ovV14dvY 909t
e dwng uiseg abing ajjownely siiedey dwng 88°GL/.°/ $ salbojouyoa| pinj4 pedueApy G709
2104 #dw3 - 1s9] yjealig Juapiody 1sod 81/2/0L 00°'SC $ "Ou| ‘sjueynsuoy 1sa1,v 14408174
weisAg Bulpulg quio) ‘sjeaypn JieyD a0 ‘Bulures |
21eM}J0S S}8Y01] SullIy € ‘101en}oy auLIojyD sled ‘youn Bunss|y wwo)) ‘ejelen
99JJ0D ‘8| AON SPY JOf sul-uQ ‘uosydunT sewisuyd Jo |eg - pJed Ipald 68°/60°'G $ jued [eluusjue)| T-LINALO3 T
NNIYIIYS ‘IN-G ‘d114 ‘BlldWNel ‘SUODIBA - 9AG Jejsdwng 8E'€/¥'8 $ Juswabeuely s)sep €09y
NOILdIFOS3d INNONY Ol 379VAVvd #
MO3HO M0

6102 ‘1€ Arenuer
SININISHNIGSIA HSVYD
HIALVMILSYM MD0d 3T1LLIT HLHON



g abed

v1218'6T8'E $

SINIWISHINESIA HSVD ALITILN TVLOL

JUNOJJY WOl sjuswasingsid [ejol /L'8Ly'98y $ pun4 uononaisuo) 910¢
JUN022Y WO} payelq SjuswAed ueo ] AlUJUON 82 ¥S/'eve  $ sjuswAed ueo1-v4Qyv
suoonpa uolun 1paln Jo usodaq 21U04108[] 40} 894 AJYIUOIN 00°GZ $ uolun Jpal) |elepe sesueyly
vO'¥S0'92L  $ 61/0z/1 Bulpug pouad Aed
0L6ZL'GLL  $ 61/90/1 Bulpug pouad Aed
S'0EY'8y8c $
aulyoely abejsod |14y 05908 $ samog Asulid| Z-LWALD33
sealy pabeweq juleday pue Jleday pue soe|doy - 0 L# HUN L2 261°L $ OO Yoing Asuyemo £8097
SHUN | - ®2IAIBS BJOIYBA AIYIUON 00°06F $ 077 ‘YSN 199]4 }08UU0D UOZUBA 28091
Aemojes |eyibIq ‘Joues|] apotjos|g Hd ‘©posiosl3 qing 1eld 28°59S $ joogenig vsn T809¥
Bunsal | sse|D - quiay abesjilN 3 [esN 91'L6 $ Maqgle uoay sassA|n 0809
8/1 8le 8JIAI8S |[oJU0] 1s8d 9¢'61L 1L $ Jajuag Buissadoid xjujwia ] 6,097
6 9]0AD JoquieoaQ SjUN0DDY saIoy ueAuny pa|ilg 6/°//9'0S $ | LZ# 10LasIqg Jlemes 8.09%
Ajquiessy 8soH - ¢y L# HUN LG 202 $ Voo 1,09
119 Buiquin|d jo Juswasinquiiay [eled - Unod sAkeH ¥ 00°0SE $ piseyolely o100 9,09V
6L/¥2/)L - 8L/L/L1 - saanjipuadx3 ysed Aned esinquiiey GZ'Lge $ yse)d Aned S.09%
JapuinAeq ‘asjulud ‘siaulpiug ‘sqe] xapu| ‘ede] ‘ped @SnoO\ ‘@SNoN
‘abieyn ‘dweT ‘enssi] ‘sjppmo] Jaded ‘sjage] ‘s)00gajoN ‘sebpuped Jsuo]l 0£°8ZL L $ SJoNpold 9210 shied /,09%
s)uLQ @ sayoun Buiesy sdRIWWOD 61/8/L ¥1L°E6 $ 0711 ‘essued €097
Bp|g 1emolg 14 - senpow IndinQ Aejey 00°0Z1L $ "ou| Buusauibug ebewQ 2,097
aoe|d puelluelN ‘201 AMH
‘Pul 07| ‘Bull|eghely Aemojjes) ‘@Bpn|g 14 ‘}OH %00IgsueT ‘eUON g#08€E ‘BUON
g¥z6e ‘eIxIQ ‘Jspoys ‘wpy 14 ‘puj wnoneg ‘poomaye ‘Jamolg T4 ‘BnojIys
‘d17d ‘@dun8uld ‘umeT e}leg ‘38SD 14 ‘WU Juld 14 ‘Bux Jeuyined ‘euoN 9z18¢
‘8)en O YM ‘ge T4 ‘Bux ssaudAD ‘puj stueH ‘3 puejhiely Y0oigyeQ 0M08|3 Z1°089°L¢ $ OLI109|3 %20y 81T YHON TLO9Y
NOILdIJdOS3d INNOINY Ol 3T19VAVd #
MO3HO M0

6102 ‘1€ Arenuer
SININISHNIGSIA HSVYD

d3LVMILSVYM HO0d IT1LLIT HLHON



3)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR JANUARY 2019

ACTION REQUESTED:

Approve the Financial Statements for January 2019.



T o8ed

1£726'8.8'5¢1$

02'881'92¢'2$

00°¢€L'0512C$
02'S50'91%

€1°'199'060°811$

(91°605'¥0¥ ' #.L$)
00'SS¥ 0F2'SS
P 19€°180'G3
25'€90'p89'CLS
S6°P6LCPT LS
G8'€90'216%
€1'895°2€8'2/%
G0'6c.'628'2L$
9g'cLe12o'zLe
9’ 018'6€L°c$

v0'€L0C9%'G1S

G6'0PE LS
GL'¢68'99%
G/'G91'801$
£$'950'9¢$
L5'SPp'cos
1£°9/€°191'¢$
98'20¥'8¢.$
Or'vLl $c0'8$
96°'9.5°122'¢S
000048

6102 ‘L€ Atenuer ‘Aepsiny]
}aaysS aouejeg
13JEMIJSEAA HOOY 39117 YHUON

S13ISSV V1oL

S13ISSV 43H1O Tv1O0L

NOISN3Id 01 A31v13d SMOT4LNO d3¥d3430
A7GVAIFIIT IBNO TIXIA
S13SSV d3H10

LINIWJINDT 8 LNVId 'ALYIJ0OUd TVLOL
NOILYI103dd43d A3 LY T1NWNOOV
SSIIO0Ad NI NOILINHLSNOD

S3NIT H3IAMIS dT0 40 INTVA "LS3
ININGINDT WILSAS 43IM3S
ONITTING AYOLVHOaYT
SONIATING ON3 8 "LNIVIA 2 NOILVALSININGY
SIANLONGLS LNVTd LINJW1VIHL
SANITWILSAS 43IM3S
SIANLONHLS NOILVYLS ONIdWNA
aNv1

LNIWJINDI 8 LNV1d ‘ALYIdO¥d

SL13ASSY LNJHJHND V1oL
SIASNIAX3 dlvdIdd 43IHLO
JFONVHNSNI NOILYSNIdWO D SHIHHOM AivdIdd
JONVANSNI ALIIGVIT dIVdadd
AJOLNIANI LIS-NO
F79VAITOTY LSTFHYILNI d3NHIIV
319VAIFOFY SLNNOJJV
SINNOJJY ONIATOH V44V
11S043a 40 S31v3I411L430
MNvE NI HSVO
HSVYO AlLl3d

S13ISSV LNIHAND

S13SSsV



7 23ed

1£726'8/8'G€1$

15'SEV'C58'¥8%

85°G/8'0€9%

89'15€'¥8¢'9¢$
08'8/8°22L°/\$
LG'6ZE0LL0ES

61 286'65E€ 67$

00'8.Z'€¥6$
00°€60'98/'C$
00°€6E'L61S
29'0.8'0€€°CS
00'929'¢LT'LL
ZLBEL'SLY'8LS
09'691'L¥6'6$
GGZLL'BLY'ES

LE'¥0G'G99°L S

££'€81'99%
08'28¥'82¢$
(LE'¥89'LY)
9£'60/2'222%
16'8€2'€0t$
00°'000'v$
05'88¢'L$
8Z'/11'091%
L 181'06%
25'502°¢82%
6£6.120L%

61L0Z ‘1€ Aenuep ‘Aepsiny]

13)emajsepy yo0y 3|\IT YUON

jaays aouejeg

ALIND3 @ s31L1NIGVIT TV1OL

ALIND3I TVLOL

(SSOT) / IWOODNI L3N "vIA LNIHAND
SONINYY3 d3NIvLIy
TvLlldvO d3LYNOa
TVLIdvD a3LNGIdLINOD
ALIND3T

S3IILMEGVYIT ¥43IHLO TvL10L

SNOISN3Id O1 d31v13d SMOT4INI d3¥Hd343a
ALITNEVITNOISN3d L3N
5% dSVO-NOILYOIT180 9340
TWSOdSId A HOS-0Ig9 JO4 IAY3IS3IS
910Z S3I1Y3S-31avAVd SANOd
Z10Z S3IJ3S-319vAvVd SAONOd
800¢ SAIHYIS-ITdVAVd SANOY
100Z S31Y3S-319VAVd SANOY
S3LIAvIT ¥3HLO

S3ILITEVYIT LNIHANO TvLOL
NOILNGIYLNOD NV1d NOISN3d d3NdOdV
318VAVYd LSFHILNI d3INHDOV
S1143N39 9dA0TdINT AINHIOV
JAVIT NOILVYOVA AINHIDV
IAVITMOIS AINYOIV
SNIAHVYO ¥HIHINT OL 3T19VvAVYd
3IX1d OL 31avAvd
3719VAVd 334 3SIHONVYHA
S1O141SId ¥3HLO OL d3MO0
‘00 IONVHNSNI-FONVYAQY
JFT9VAVd SLNNODIV

S3AILIMNGVIT LNIFHAND

s3alLngvi



£9'666'ErLLS

S0'619'898° L%

00'000°'006' L&

ANNIATH V101

LEPLL'PS 0T6Lr'TLE 00°002°41$ ANNIATH ONILYHIJO-NON Y101
00'0$ 00'00Z% 00°0% FWOINI SNOIANVYTTIISIN
r1zs geLLg 00°0% Q3INdv¥3 SINNODSIA
85'8rre 895'8rr$ 00°00r$ SILON-FJWOINI AINHYT 1S3 LN|
00398 792983 00°009% ONIHIIHI-IWOINI AINHYT LSTFHILINI
8£'029'cs Z9'956°01S 00°002'0L$ SALHNITS-IWOINI AINHVYT LSIHTLNI

92'62Z'6EL'LE

GE'BEE'952' LS

00°00£'388'L$

ANNIATH ONILYHI4O NON

ANNIATY ONILYHIJO V101

0050128 00°0% 00'005% SNOILYIIFIDAdS 8 SNVTd M3IIATY
00°00.% 00'004% 00°008% S1INE3d ONILIND 133415 8 dV1
006EL$ 00°06% Q00°0% S1MN3d NOILO3IdSNI TVIldvd
00009'¢cs 0069928 00°00EES S1INETd NOILIDIdSNI NOILDINNOD
000% 08'02F LS 00°0% SAOHUVYHI I34 NO-3IL
88'062'v28 95°451'Ees 00'006°92% ‘WO B 'STd-SIOUVYHI J34 J1VT
06'8.0'1$ ZTAATRS 00'009% S3DHYHD 334 3LV AHLSNANI
L9r9L'azs Z58L0'BES 00 00F'€ES SAOUVYHI ALTYNIJ/FOUYHIHNS AYLSNANI
ZL'295'051% P LL8'GLLS 00'001'821% SIDHVYHD UV IND3IY AYLSNANI
WrlZ'rs LE°8€'FS 00°00F % SIDHYHO IIALTS HINWOLSND
00'6£Z'8Z$ 0061053 00'00€'€¥S SADHVYHO LNIWLVYIHL AOOMHIHS
S5'£.£'822% 699LL 2£23 000046923 SIOHEYHI DIAETS FTINNVIN
R LA ANTAS 05'606'0rZ$ 00'009'1¥2$ $39HVYHI FDIAH3S HIN JAISLNO

§1°2.52€0'1L$

vivrZ'690'1LE

00°005'680°)8

SIOHVYHDI FIAHIS AN JAISNI
ANNIATYH SNILYHILO

ANNIATAH

8102 6L0C 139dangd
31v¥a O1 dv3A J1va Ol Hv3A J1vad OL "VY3A

£ aded

610Z ‘L Auenuep “Aepsiny Bulpuz yjuop suQ sy} 104
JUSWSIE}S BLUODU|
18JEMB)SEM 420y T YLION



t 28ed

97991 Z¥r$

85°6/8'0£9%

00'006'L9ES

/8CIB'LOE'ES

LV EPB'.ET 1S

00°004+'ZES %

g96'czL18s ¥ €67 998 0000t /8%
96°cTlL L8% cP'£62'98% 00°00F'Z8%
68'889'02Z' 14 YO0S9 LS LS 00 00L'bPY LS
v£'86.'29% £C'e81'99% 00°00L°29%
02995 L1LES 0.°6L9°6ZE% 00°008°svES
LEPRL'PLS LO¥PEZ0LS 00°006'06%
80°€L6'E5S [Relrdd SR o+l 00°00Z'99%
69'L6L'EPS 8¥ 0.5 ¥rd 00'00€'15%
16°896'/PES L2 '€96'0EES 00°009'9LFS
09°500°91% 058Fg'LLS 00005028
CGZIL'TLY 8 LOVF'61E 00°006'2¢%
86 LET VLS 08°E/8'71LS 00°00¢'82%
r'9/6'2S ¥1L'C86'CS 00°00Z 7%
g0/12'01% 2€'865'01% 00°00S'ELS
e LIZS L 6.8 00°0%
19'Z08'cs 1605121 00°004'FL$
59°05¢'cY 899591 1% 00 00¥'¥PLS
ac'zZr0'zL S ZS00¥'ELS 00 002'51%
an'6s6'LS £5/8F 1% 00°'008'S%
15%21'8% c00r9' /S 00'000°ELS
09°GET 1LY 95 06%'8% 00°C00° LZ$
l9LG0ZLS 1E09Z'Z1LE 00°00F'21$
66'6£2'92% 08°90'LIS 00°001'22%
8L'6E5° 1LS1S SH0c.'98% 00°000°92 L%
26'067'GLS 90°982'8% 00'00G°L 1%
829¥5'/% 98'850°8% 0o00LZLS
16°£21'E% 06'8£2°7S 00°002°/%
0£°€6¥'GS fofeel Je g 00 00¥'0LS
PG/ 93 TR TAR L 00 00Z'0LS
£Z95¢°1L$ ¥0'0Z6% 00'006'¥$
810z 6102 139ang

A1vA OL dv3A

31¥d O1 ¥v3A

31¥a Ol dv3A

6107 'L Menuer ‘Aepsany | Suipu3 yluow 3uQ ayj 104

JUSLLAJELS SWOIU|
13)EMa}SEA 420N 3I1IT YMON

(S5O IWODNI L3N
S3ASNIIXT TWLOL

SASNIJXKT ONILYHIJO-NON TvLOL

SANOH TIV-1830d NO 15343 1N
SIASNIAXT ONILYHIJO-NON
S3ISNIAJXT ONILYHILO TVLOL

JSNIIX3 NOISNId

IT1DIHIA NON-ISNIJXT NOILYICTHd3A

IAILVHLISININGY

INIWLHYJ4IA ONITIE

INIWLHYJHIA NOILVY LS dWNd

INIWLHYHIA INFWLIVIHL

INIWIHVYHIA INFWLYIH1THd

"1d3Q ONIMIINIDONT T¥HINTD

301440 ONIYIINIONT

HAHOM NOILYOOT

G# MIHD NOD-CVA

F# MIHD NOD-OVA

£€# M-I NODO-OVA

c# MIXI NOD-OVA

L AMAJHO NO2-OVA

L# MIHO ONIQAQOd ¥3amod

P MIHC dIVd3Id

£ MO HIvd3ay

¢# MIHC Hivd3ad

L# MIHC HIvd3d

IYHINIO-SIWILSAS NOILDITTOQ

cH# MIH2 NOISIAGTEL

M M3HD NOISIATTIAL

MIYT IAIHA IO

MIHD FTOHNVYIN

M3IHD 3T8N0oUL

MIHD DNV
SIASNIIXT ONILYHILO



€9666'CrL LS

€IB66'ErL LS

G0'618'898°L$

S0'6L8'898°L$

LE¥LL'YS LEVLLYS 0C6.¥'CLS 0C6.rCLS
00°0% 000% 0000¢$ 00°00¢%

A ATAS lv'1cs 8 LIS 8CLLS
8G'8¥¥S 8G'8¥P$ 858vv% 8G'8rYS
00'¥89¢ 00'¥89% ¢9'c98% ¢9'c98%
8€°029'cs 8€029°c$ 29'986°01$ 29'956'01%

9z'scC'6eL'LS

9z'Gze'6eL' LS

G8'6££'958'LS

G8'6E€°958 LS

00'60L°2% 00°601'2$ 00 0% 00°0%
00°00.% 00'00.% 00°00.% 00'00.$
00'G6ELS 00S€L$ 00'06% 00'06%
00°009'c$ 00°009°'c$ 00'699'¢$ 00'699'¢$
00°0% 00°0% 08'0cr'L$ 08°0cr'L$
88°052'v2s 88052 ves 9G°.G1'ceS 95°/G1'¢cES
06'820'1$ 06'820'L$ {{AATE S CAATRS
19+91'82% 19¥9L°82$ 26'8l0'6gs 25'810'6E8
Z1°295'0G61% 212950618 €P128'G218 €P1L8'GLLS
Lo 712 78 LW iL2' v 1E°8LE'YS 1£°8.€'vS
00'6£2°'82% 00'6£2'82% 00'610°15% 00'610°'1G%
GG'€£/£'8229 66'c/e'82e$ 69'9L1'2€2% 69'9LL'/ECS
b9v22'0€2$ ¥9peeoces 06'G06°0v2% 05'506'0+C$

GL'2L62€0°LS

GL'2LG'LEOLS

vLvb2'690' LS

v, v¥2'690°1L$

gL0e

3F1vG OL ¥V3A

G 23ed

gL0z
AHVANYHE

6102

31vd OL dv3IA

6L0C
AHVYANYHE

6102 ‘1€ Auenuer ‘Aepsiny] Buipuz ywow suQ ayy 104
juawalelg awoau|
131BMBISBAA %00 B3} YHON

INNIATY TV1O0L

INNIATH ONILYHIdO-NON TV1OL
JWOINI SNOANVTTIIOSIN
Q3IN'GVv3 SLNNOOSId
SILON-IWODNI dINTVYI LSIHILNI
ONIMOIAHD-IWOOINI AINHVYI LSIHILNI
SILENDIS-IWOINI AINHYT LSTHATLNI
INNIATH ONILYHI4O NON

JINNIATY ONILYHIdO TVLOL
SNOILYOIHID3dS ® SNYTd MIINIY
SLIWY3d ONILLND 13341S ¥ dVL
S1IW3d NOILO3IdSNI TVILdYd
S1IWY3d NOILD3dSNI NOILDINNOD
SIOUVYHO 334 NO-3IL
‘WO ® 'SAY-S3IOYVYHD 334 ALV
SIDAVYHO J34 31VT AHLSNANI
SIDUVYHO ALTYNIA/ADHYVYHIINS AHLSNANI
SIDAVHO AV TINO I AL LSNANI
SAVHYVYHO IOIALIS dINOLSND
SIDHVHO LNIWLVIHL AOOMYIHS
SIDHVYHO FDIAYIS ITNINNYIN
SIVHUVHI FOIAMIS HIN 3AISLNO
SIOHUVYHO 3OIAY3IS YN 3AISNI

INNIATH ONILYHIJO

INNIATS



9,981 2rre

WA

856/8'0c9%

85'6/8'0£9%

8°218'L0ELS

8Z18'10e' 1%

SN A L]

P EvB /ST 1S

(SSCT1 IWOINI LIN

SISNIdXd W101

26zl 18% 26'€Z1'18% St £62'08% P £6Z'98% SISNIdXT ONILYHIJO-NON T¥10L
85'¢Z1°18% 86'cZ1'18% S¥'£6Z'98% CPe6Z'98% SANOE 11v-193d NO 1SIHILNI
SASNILXT ONILYHIJO-NON
68889'022'1% BR'8RS'0ZZ 1§ FO'0S9'LS L LE ¥0°0G69'LGL LS SISNIAX3 ONILYHIALO TVLOL
pe952°79% ¥£'867'29% ££'t81'09% ££'¢81°90% JISNIGX3 NOISN3d
02995 LIS 0Z'996°LLES 0.619'62¢% 0/ 619°6ZE% J12IHIA NON-ISNILX3 NOILVIDIHd3g
Lev8L'PLS IS PBLYLE LO¥EZ'0LE LOvEZ'028 A LYHLISININGY
80°CLB'€SS 20°EL6'ESE 16°22E°c5$ LG ZZECEGE LNIWLHYJIT ONITTIE
69 L6L'ErS B9 L6L'ErE 8Y 0.5 18 8 0.5 vb$ INAWLHYdAd NOILVYLS dnd
16896 LPES 16896 L¥ES 1L €96°0ECE L2 €96'0€ES INIWLIHYAIA INIWLYISHL
09'500'91% 09'G00'9L% 058v8'LLS 0588 L LS INAW1IHYd3Ia INFWLYIH LT
£5°Z9lL'2LS £GZOL'ZIS P8 LOP'ELE P2 LOV'6LE 1430 ONIFIINIONT TvdINTD
867 LEZ'PLE 86187 ¥ IS 08°€i8'v IS 09°€/8'vLE 321440 ONIHIIANIONT
1¥'9/62% I¥'9/6'C% ¥1°€86'C% ¥1'C86'2S NHOMNOILYI0T
29°212°01% 89°/12'01% LE865'01% [2°865'0L% S# MIYD NOD-DVA
e LTS e LLTS [RAYAR Lr'6.E$ P MIHD NOD-IVA
l9Z09'cs 19°Z08'c$ /6'0GL'ZLE [B0G6L'ZLS £# MIHD NOJ-IVA
59°058'cS 59'05£'cS 99°959'L1$ 99°969'L 1% Z# MIHD NODJ-IVA
9g'ZPOgLY 9g'Zr0'Z1e Z500¥2LS 25°00%'21Le L# MIND NOD-OVA
90'6¢6° L4 9506¢6' LS £5/8%'1% £G /8t LS L# MIHD ONIJAOH ¥IMOd
1S bEl et LSrZL'eS £O0¥9'L% €O0r9'LS P MIHD HIvd3y
09'GEZ' LIS 09°GEZ LIS 95'06%'8% 95 06%'8% £# MIHD Hivdad
/9'150'21$ 197160219 1£09Z'Z1% 1£092'2L% ZH# MIHD HIvd3ax
66'G8/'92% B6°GEL'0ZS 08'90'L1$ 08'9/0'L1% L# MIHD Hivd3ay
81'6£5°1G1% 81'6ES ISLS Gr 0L '98% Gy 0£.'98% TYHINID-SWILSAS NOILDTTI0D
Z6°06P'GLE Z6°06P'GLY 90°887'8% 90'88T 8% Z# MIHD NQISIATTEL
L9¥5' L 87°9vG' /1§ 98°950'8% 98°850°9% L# M3 NOISIAFT3L
L6 LLL'ES 1B8°2L2'CS 06'8c8'¢H 06'8£8'2$ MIHD IAIHA HIMOd
0£°€6P'GE 0L €6¥'SS £5'GPS' P £G° GG e MIHD ITCHNVYIN
£C PS5/ '9% €€ bs/s'0% ¥6°GZ1'8% 6521’89 MIND 379N0Y1L
€Z'95¢°1 ¢ £T958'1Y ¥0°0Z6% #0°026¢ MIED ONDITYM
SISNILXI ONILVHILO
8102 8102 6102 6102
31¥a OL Hv3A ALYNNYr 31va OL ¥¥3A AYYNNYT
g 28ed

610z ‘1€ Aenuer ‘Aepsiny] Bujpu3 yiuow suQ ay3 104
UBWIENS WO
13}eMILSEAR HO0Y S|IIT UHON



O’ 09E'¥SL LS

LPeE0'LLZ LS

A WASTANTAR S

26'69¥°'295°LS

£9'666'€rL'1$

S0'6L8'898°L$

8Z'CLS'LS seeel'es v.'281'C% ¥S'8/5°G$ LEVLL'YS 0z6.F'C1S
00°0% 02'€0C' L% 000% 00'688°'c$ 000% 0000Z$
YAVAS CLv$ 60'62% 61 ¥S$ L ige gcLL%

Sl '¥55% SOE6V$ 61 657% 85°8rr$ 85°8vv$ 8G'8vre
sz'ze% v2'SPTS 8¢ /8v% 0S'L¥ES 00'¥89% 29'798%
S9'658% €TLLL'LS 81°202'1$ 1T7°6¥8% 8¢'029'ce 2995601 %

ZLLv8TSLLS

900L6°202°L$

88%20'L02'L$

8E'168°195°L$

9z'szeees'L$

G8'6££'958'L

000% €0°9L1L$ 000% 00°0$ 00'S0LC$ 00°0%
00050'L$ 00'00.$ 00°00.$ 00°0S0'L$ 00'00.$ 00°00.$
00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0% 00°0$ 00'SELS 00°06$
00°085'2$ 00'590'2$ 00°0,6% 00'629'2$ 00'009'c$ 00'599'Z$
00'0$ 00°€pZ$ 00°0% 18'986% 00'0% 08'02r'L$
LL'6Y8'ETS 86°0LF'LLS 18'v0'0Z$ 96'109'87$ 88'052'vZ$ 95°/51L'ee%
05'8/9°L$ z,86v'c$ 00'0$ 98'188% 06'820'L$ b2'26.$
0€ PSS'CLS pE/LB'TS 96°0€€'Z$ Z0'09v P LO'P9L'8ZS z5'8L0'6€$
2.789'S/% 9e'8rZ'0L$ 6'728'98% 16655863 C1'295'0S1L$ Cr 1286218
€1L°2€0'%$ 9/'960'r$ 8€'961 7% 66151 VS WrLZ'vs LE8LEYS
00°1L0'82% 00'601'828 00'v66'0v$ 00'b¥Z'828 00'6£2'92$ 00'6L0'15%
000% 00'0$ 00°0% £€'209'502$ $5'€26'8228 69°9LL'LE2S
09'000'921$ Z209€'16L$ 80'€6Z'281$ 8p'12£'80Z$ ¥9'¥Z2'08Z$ 05°506'0vZ$
0L°€0v"9Z8% 59'¥80'288% 19°02.'258% Zr0LY'8e6s GL'Z.G'L€0°LS v, vbZ'690'L$
v10Z N 910z 2102 810z 6102
AMVNNVE ANVNNYT AYVNNYT AYVNNYT AYVNNYT AYVNONYP
m_..___u_.._m YIUOW auQ ay} o4
lusawalelg mEOo_..:
¢ 93e4 13}EM3ISEM %20 3[1IT YHON

INNIATY TVLOL

JNNIATH ONILYEIHO-NON TVLOL
JWODNI SNOINY 113 DSIW
A3INAVI SINNOISIA
SILON-FWOONI INYVI LSIHTLNI
ONIXNOIHDO-IWOONI GINHVYI LSTHTLNI
SILIYNOIAS-TWOINI AINAVI LSTFHILNI
JNNIATS ONILYHIHO NON

INNIATH ONILVYHIHO TvLOL
SNOILYOI4103dS 8 SNV 1d M3IATS
SLINY3d ONILLND 13391S B dVL
S1IW3d NOILO3dSNI TVILdvd
S1IWY3d NOILOAJSNI NOILOINNOD
SIOHUVHO 334 NO-3IIL
‘WO B 'STY-STOIVHO 334 1V
SIOHUVHO 334 LV AYLSNANI
SIOUYHI ALTYNI/FDAVHOIANS AYLSNANI
SIDHVYHD I 1NOIA AHLSNANI
SITHYVYHD FDIAYAS JFNOLSND
SIOHUVHO INIFW1IVIHL AOOMEIHS
SADAVHO IOIAGTS ATTINNYIN
SADAVHD IOIAY3S YN 3AISLNO
S30HVHO FOIAYTS J7IN 3AISNI

JNNIATH ONILYHIHO

INNIATS



CTANN A 224 ) 82°2£0'c923 A TARALS 6p'G66'v LY 9.'981'¢pp$ 85'G/8°0£9%
r6'8pl'0L6$ €1'966'LV6% 61'G.6'186% P vLy'eSLLS 18°218'L0¢E' LS AN A%
£2°8p8'9v$ 92'0..'v9% v9'222'CL$ 86'G6P'GLS 86'cZ1'18% C't62'98%
£2'8p8'9r$ 920.4'v9% v9'222'2L$ 86'G6L'G LS 86'¢Zl'L8% €p'£62'98%
L2 00€°€983% 18'G622'c88% G5754'606% Sp'8/6'9.0'L$ 69'889'022'1$ Y0’ 0G9'LS1L°LS
19'999'Lp$ 00'000'05% 29'991'vS$ 00'G//2'85% v¢'85/2'29% ££°¢81'99%
98 p68°'98L$ 88'256'02¢% 9p'906'2£Z$ §2°90.'22¢s 02'995°L1ES 0.619'62¢$
000% 00°0% 000% €C686'LS 000% 00'0%
8/'/G€'v9% 8L 112'85% €51 '89% Ly 82093 LEPBL'PLS LOPET'0LS
68'€99'0r$ 6£°652'LpS L0222 zrs 90'ZrL'6rd 80€L6'ESS 15°22€'€S$
691L0L°22% 892re'zes 91'929'ce$ 12282 vES 69'L6L'EPS 81 0.5 vPE
9G°'650'892% gleeg'Lees 85°092'.vC$ £P'692°20¢s 1G'896'LpES L2 '€96'0EES
0€'/8Y'vLS Sz'158°clL$ /G'€89°ZL$ 6.'€90°¢L$ 09'S00'9L$ 05'8r8°LLS
9/°880'6L% 06'8LL'9L$ SPpp0LLS 8r'8LZ'8Ls €529L'CLS ¥8'10v'61L$
S560'LS 26°€09% 05°102% 55815% 00°0% 00'0%
ZLG6P'ELS 2 0c0'cL$ 1Z'820°LLS 806¢6'L 1% 8612 PLS 08¢€.8'vL$
00°028°€$ 152v6'es 12°955'2$ 82'8.6'C$ [v'9.6'C% r1€86'2$
Sp'/88'v$ €8'19L'cs 25°9v6'cs 09Zle'cs 00 0% 00'0%
00'0% 000% €8'v.0'6% 91'820'S$ 89/1Z'01L$ 1£86G'0LS
000% 69'90/% AN 4765 0Z'129% TEAWIAS LP 6269
15°99.'6% 6 €0E'LLS 7667868 LE9PL'6% 19'208°c$ /605LCLS
L LpP0LS PEGLY'LLS 2 0£9'6% 06'92E'v$ 59'05€'cS 89'969'L 1%
L8601 LLS 9L pLE'ZLS G6'002'8% £9°/09'01% 9c'ZP0'CLS Z500p'2L$
52°0.8'2% £6'68L'LS 000% 000% 000% 0003
LLp62'C$ PRATA 2SN 000% G.°00L'1% 90'6£6'L$ £S5 /80'LS
00'0% 000% 000% 9p 662 6% LSPTL'8% €00r9'L$
g8 'ar6'9Ls 0S'696'L2$ 66'G8S'/$ 1€°229'0L% 09GeZ'LLS 95'067'8%
LTE€96'LS €1229'8% 60922 LS 89°108'cL$ L9°150'CLS 1£092'2L$
$G'G0L0LS PN ALRARS LL'GBI'2LE 9.91¢'6% 66'GE.'92$ 08'9/0'L1$
vZ'050'02% 86°1Lp5'c8% 86'260'98% £0'666'68% 8165 LSLS S'0£2'98%
0.'¥Sr'SS SL'pB0' LS v 1/6'9% vS 268'9% 6067'GLS 90'882'8%
Sz’ lzy'ss 20'989°L% G1L'0£2'9% 88'992'8% 82'9v5'/$ 98'850'8%
Z5GLP LS L' 29v's$ ZrcLss 66080 v$ 16°LLL'ES 06'8£8°2%
9€'¢Z.'GS 76'G8.'6% 20'9zZ¢'c$ 00'9¢ce'cs 0€'€6P'SS £SGPS'PS
Z26'256°0L% GZ'906°/% 09205'0L$ 2T vpS6% €CrS.'93 6621’8
00°0% 90°Ze9'L$ 000% 000% £€295¢'13 +0°'026$
102 SL0Z 9102 10T 8102 610C
AYVANVE AYMVOANVE AYVANVYE AYVNONYT AYMVNNVE AMVNANVE

8 93ed

Buipu3z yuow aup ayj 404

Juaale)S AWodU]

191eMa}SEA HOON 3T YHON

(SS0O7 IWODNI L3N
SISNIIXI W10L

SISNIAXT ONILYHIJO-NON T¥LOL
SANOE TIv-1930 NO LSIHILNI
SISNIAXI ONILYHIJO-NON
SISNIAXT ONILYHIJO TVLOL
ISNIJXI NOISNId
JIDIHIA NON-ISNIdXI NOILYIOTH43A
SIVS0dSIa ALYIJOHd NO SSOT (NIvD)
IAILVHLSINIANQY
LINIWLHY4IAQ ONITTI8
LNIWLYYdIA NOILYLS dWNd
INIWLHVCIA INTFWLYIYL
LNIW1HYd3Ad INFW1IYIHLIHd
"Ld3A ONIYIINIONT TIvHINTD
SISS-ONIYIINIONT
301440 ONIYIIANIONT
MHOM NOILYOO7]
MINMD AFAYENS
G#t MIHO NOD-OVA
p# MA3ED NOD-OVA
C# MIHO NOD-OVA
Z# MIYD NOD-OVA
L# MIHD NOD-OVA
Z# MIHO ONIOQOd ¥3IMOd
L# MTIHD ONIOQOY ¥3MOd
# MIHD Hivd3Y
C# MIYD HIvdad
T# MIHO HIvd3y
L# MIYD Hivday
JYHINID-SIWILSAS NOILDITI0D
Z# MIHO NOISIATI3L
L# M3HD NOISIATTIL
AMIHD FAIHA HIMOJ
AMIHD TIOHNYIN
AMIHD I7EN0YL
MIHD ONDITIVM
SISNIdXT ONILYHIHO



(4)

ANNUAL PAgcIs DUES

The annual dues payment for membership to the Pulaski Area Geographic Information System
(PAGIS) is due. The amount is $39,705 and has been the same for the last eight (8) years.
This item is included in the 2019 budget for $40,900.

ACTION REQUESTED:

Authorize annual dues payment to PAGIs in the amount of $39,705.



st ! iy,

o ’ -
~ < Pulaski Area Geographic Information System ]
= % 221 East Capitol Ave., 4th Floor §417 Invoice
% 5 Luttle Rock, Arkansas 72202 b I .
in *.,‘”*‘ Phone: {501)377-1264 Fax: {501}210-4980 ate nvoice
i ¥ H
e Julie Kent@pagis.org 1412019 1076
Bill To Remit To:
Morth Little Rock Wastewater Utility PAgis
P.0. Box 17894

Morth Little Rock, Arkansas 72117

22| East Capitol Avenue
4th Floor, Room #417
Litle Rock, Arkansas 72202

S01-377-1264

PO, Number Project
Quan. Item Code Description Price Each Amount
| OD-NLRW ., | 2019 Operating Dues - NLEWWLU 19.705.00 6.705,00
|"1| H L] i ; .
VEUTLLTT_RECEIVED jaN -7 2019
Total £39,705.00
Web Site
Phone # W pagis.org




(5)

MODIFICATIONS TO THE VacCon/TV BAYS

At a special called meeting on November 6, 2018, the Committee declared an emergency and
authorized staff to retain the services of CBM, Inc. and TAGGART/Architects for replacement of the fire
damaged buildings at the Faulkner Lake WRF. Staff have been engaged with CBM, Inc. and
TAGGART/Architects with the damage assessment and preliminary planning for the work.

TAGGART/Architects are currently under contract for architectural services for the collections systems
offices addition, and staff would like to consider combining the collections systems building addition
project with the modifications to the VacCon/TV bays project to expedite the work and to take advantage

of any economies of scale.

Staff recommends entering into a construction management contract with CBM, Inc. for modifications

to the VacCon/TV bays and to include the collections systems building addition.

A copy of the proposed contract is included.

ACTION REQUESTED:

Authorize staff to enter into a construction management contract with CBM, Inc. for modifications to

the VacCon/TV bays and to include the collections systems building addition.



























§4.2.2 Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Construction Manager's invoice, Amounts umpaid ()
days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate
prevaling from time to time at the principal place of business of the Construction Manager.

(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.)

| 5 % per annum

ARTICLES COMPENSATION FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

§ 5.1 For the Construction Manager’s performance of the Work as described in Section 2.3, the Owner shall pay the
Construction Manager the Contract Sum in current funds. The Contract Sum is the Cost of the Work as defined in
Section 6.1.1 plus the Construction Manager’s Fee.

§ 5.1.1 The Construchon Manager’s Fee:
{State a himp sum, percentage of Cost of the Work or other provision for determining the Construction Manager's Fee,)

| Cost as defined in section 6 1 1 plus 5% fee and 1.5% for general insurance, Builders Risk insurance and Safety.

§ 5.1.2 The method of adjustment of the Construction Manager's Fee for changes in the Work:
| Cost as defined m section 6 1.1 plus 5% fec and 1.5% for general insurance, Builders Risk insurance and Safety.

§ 5.1.3 Linmutations, 1f any, on a Subcontractor’s overhead and profit for increases in the cost of its portion of the Work:
| None

§ 5.1.4 Rentsal rates for Construction Manager-owned equipment shall not exceed percent { %) of the standard rate
paid at the place of the Project.

§ 5.1.5 Unit prices, if any
(Identifi and state the unit price; state the quantity limitations, if any, 1o which the wnit price will be applicable.)

Item Units and Limitations Price per Unit (50.00)
| To be Determined in Addendum 1

§ 5.2 Guaranteed Maximum Price

§ 5.2.1 The Construction Manager guarantees that the Contract Sum shall not exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price set
forth in the Guaranieed Maximum Price Amendment, as it 1s amended from time to lime, To the extent the Cost of the
Work exceeds the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Construction Manager shall bear such costs in excess of the
Guaranteed Maxymum Price without reimbursement or additional compensation from the Owner.

(Tnsert specific provisions if the Construction Manager is to participate in any savings.)

| All Saving shall be distrirted 80% to the Owner and 20% to the Coniractor.

§ 5.2.2 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is subject to additions and deductions by Chenge Order as provided in the
Contract Documents and the Date of Substantizl Completion shall be subject to adjustment as provided in the Contract
Documents

§ 5.3 Changes in the Work

§ 5.3.1 The Owner may, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the
Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions. The Owner shall issue such changes in writing. The
Architect may make minor changes in the Work as provided in Section 7.4 of AIA Document A201-2007, General
Conditions of the Contract for Construction. The Construetion Manager shall be entitied to an equitable adjustment in
the Contract Time as a result of changes in the Work.

§ 5.3.2 Adjustments to the Guaranteed Maximum Price on account of changes in the Work subsequent to the execution of
the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment may be determined by any of the methods listed in Section 7.3.3 of AIA
Document A201-2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.

Init. AIA Documant A133™ - 3008 (formarly A121 ™CMe - 200%). Copyright © 1884, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architeoss. All rights resarved.
WARNING: Thiz AIA® Document s protectad by U.S. Copyright Lew and Iinternational Treaties. Unauthorzad raproduction or distribution of this AlA®
Documant, or any portion of it, may resuft In severe civil and criminal panaltes, and will ba prosecuted o the maximum silent pessible under the law.

f This documant was produced by AL sofiware 8t 125727 ET an 02063019 under Order No, 1281627280 which expires on 08072018, and |s nat for resals.
User Notes: (1633184808)



§ 5.3.3 In caleulating adjustments to subcontracts (except those awarded with the Owner's prior consent on the basis of
cost plus a fee), the terms "cost” and "fee" as used in Section 7.3.3.3 of AIA Document A201-2007 and the term "costs"
#s used n Section 7.3.7 of AIA Document A201-2007 shall have the meanings assigned to them in AIA Document
A201-2007 and shall not be modified by Sections 5.1 and 5.2, Sections 6.1 through 6.7. end Section 6.8 of this
Agreement. Adjnstments to subcontracts awarded with the Owner’s prior consent on the basis of cost plus a fee shall be
calculated in accordance with the terms of those subcontracts,

§ 5.3.4 In calenlating adjustments to the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the terms "cost" and "costs” as used in the
above-referenced provisiens of ATA Document A201-2007 shall mean the Cost of the Work as defined in Sections 6.1 to
6 7 of this Agreement and the term "fee” shall mean the Construction Manager’s Fee as defined in Section 5.1 of this

Agreement

§ 5.3.5 If no specific provision is made in Section 5.1.2 for adjustment of the Construction Manager’s Fee in the case of
changes in the Work, or if the extent of such changes is such, in the aggregate, that application of the adjustment
provisions of Section 5 1.2 will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or Construction Manager, the Construction
Manager’s Fee shall be equitably adjusted on the same basis that was used to establish the Fee for the original Work, and
the Guaranteed Maximnm Price shall be adjusted accordingly.

ARTICLES§ COST OF THE WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE

§8.1 Costs to Be Reimbursed

§6.1.1 The term Cost of the Work shall mean costs necessarily incurred by the Construction Manager in the proper
performance of the Work. Such costs shall be at rates not higher than the standerd paid at the place of the Project except
with prior consent of the Owner. The Cost of the Work shall include only the items set forth in Sections 6.1 through 6.7.

§ 6.1.2 Where any cost 18 subject to the Owner’s prior approval, the Construction Manager shall obtain this approval
prior to meurring the cost. The parties shall endeavor to identify any such costs prior to executing Guaranteed Maximum
Price Amendment.

§ 6.2 Labor Costs
§ 6.2.1 Wages of construction workers directly employed by the Construction Manager to perform the construction of the
Work at the site or. with the Owner’s prior approval, af off-site workshops.

§ 6.2.2 Wages or salaries of the Construction Manager's supervisory and administrative personnel when stationed at the
site with the Owner™s prior approval.

fIfit is intended that the wages or salaries of certain personnel stationed at the Construction Manager s principal or
other offices shall be included in the Cost of the Work, identifyy in Section 11.5, the personmel to be included whether for
all ar only part of their time, and the rates at which theiv time will be charged to the Work,)

§ 8.2.3 Wages and salaries of the Construction Manager’s supervisory or administrative personnel engaged at factories,
workshops or on the road, m expediting the production or transportation of materials or equipment required for the
Work, but only for that pornon of their time required for the Work.

§ 6.2.4 Costs paid or incurred by the Construction Manager for taxes, insurance, contributions, assessments and benefits
required by law or collective bargaining agreements and, for personnel not covered by such agreements, customary
benefiis such as sick leave, medical end health benefits, holidays, vacations and pensicns, provided such costs are based
on wages and salaries mcluded in the Cost of the Work under Sections 6.2.1 through 6.2.3,

§ 6.2.5 Honuses, profit sharing, incentive compensation and any other discretionary payments paid to enyone hired by the
Caonstruction Manager or paid to any Subcontractor or vendor, with the Owner’s prior approval.

§ 6.3 Subcontract Costs
Payments made by the Construction Manager to Subcontractors in accordance with the requirements of the subcontracts,

§ 6.4 Costs of Materlals and Equipment Incorporated In the Completed Construction
§6.4.1 Costs, including transportation and storage, of materials and equipment incorporated or to be incorporated in the
completed constroction.

AlA Documernt A123™ — 2008 (formerly A121 ™CMc — 2003). Copyright © 1891, 2003 and 2008 by The Amarcan Instiute of Architectn. AR rights reserved,
WARMING: This AIA® Documant s protectad by U.S, Copyright Law and International Treatles. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ALA" 1'“'
Document, or any portion of I, may result in severe clvil and criminal penaities, and will be prosscuted o the mazimum axtent possibls under tha lms.

This document was produced by ALA software at 1225727 ET on 02052019 under Order Mo, 1251627260 which explres on DEDF/20NS, and s not for resale.,

Usar Notes: (18331 04808)




§ 6.4.2 Costs of materials described in the preceding Section 6.4.1 in excess of those actually mstalled to allow for
reasonable waste and spoilage. Unused excess materials, if any, shall become the Owner’s property at the completion of
the Work or, at the Owner's option, shall be sold by the Construction Manager. Any amounts realized from such sales
shall be credited to the Owner as a deduction from the Cost of the Work.

§ 6.5 Costs of Other Materials and Equipment, Temporary Facilities and Related ltems

§6.5.1 Costs of transportation, storage, installation, maintenance, dismantling and removal of materials, supplies,
temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and hend tools not customarily owned by construction workers that are
provided by the Construction Manager at the site and fully consumed in the performance of the Work. Costs of matenials,
supplies, temporary facthties, machinery, equipment and tools that are not fully consumed shall be based on the cost or
value of the 1tem at the fime it is first used on the Project site less the value of the item when it is no longer used at the
Project site Costs for rtems not fully consumed by the Construction Manager shall mean fair market value.

§ 6.5.2 Rental charges for temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and hand tools not customerily owned by
construction workers that are provided by the Construction Manager at the site and costs of transportation, installation,
mnor repairs, dismantling and removal. The total rental cost of any Construction Manager-owned item may not exceed
the purchase price of any comparable item. Rates of Construction Manager-owned equipment and quantities of
equipment shall be subyect to the Owners prior approval.

§ 6.5.3 Costs of removal of debns from the site of the Work and its proper and legal disposal,

§ 6.5.4 Costs of document reproductions, facsimile transmissions and long-distance telephone calls, postage and parcel
delivery charges. telephone service at the site and reasonable petty cash expenses of the site office,

§ 6.5.5 That portion of the reasonable expenses of the Construction Manager's supervisory or administrative personnel
mcurred while traveling in discharge of duties connected with the Work.

§ 6.5.6 Costs of materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a mutually acceptable location, subject to the
COwner's prior approval.

§ 6.8 Miscellaneous Costs
§ 6.6.1 Premiums for that portion of msurance and bonds required by the Contract Documents that can be directly
attnibuted to this Contract. Self-insurance for either full or partial amounts of the coverages required by the Contract

Documents, with the Owner’s prior approval,

§6.6.2 Sales, use or similar taxes imposed by a governmental authority that are related to the Work and for which the
Construction Manager is liable

§ 6.6.3 Fees and assessments for the building permit and for other permits, licenses and inspections for which the
Construction Menager 15 required by the Contract Documents to pay.

§ 6.6.4 Fees of |aboratonies for tests required by the Contract Documents, except those related to defective or
nonconforming Work for which reimbursement is excluded by Section 13.5.3 of ATA Document A201-2007 or by other
provisions of the Contract Documents, and which do not fall within the scope of Section 6.7.3.

§ 6.6.5 Royalties and license fees paid for the use of a particular design, process or product required by the Contract
Documents; the cost of defending suits or claims for infringement of patent rights arsing from such requirement of the
Contract Documents; and payments made in accordance with legal judgments agamst the Construction Manager
resulting from such suits or claims end payments of settlements made with the Owner’s consent. However, such costs of
legal defenses, judgments and settlements shall not be included n the caleulation of the Construction Manager's Fee or
subject to the Guaranteed Maimum Price. If such royalties, fees and costs are excluded by the last sentence of Section
3.17 of ATA Document A201-2007 or other provisions of the Contract Documents, then they shal) not be included in the
Cost of the Work.

§ 8.8.6 Costs for electropic equipment and software, directly related to the Work with the Owner’s prior approval.

AlA Document A133™ — 2008 (formarly A121™ CMc - 2003). Cooyright @ 1861, 2003 and 2009 by The Amedcan [nstitute of Architects, AN rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA* Document Is protectsd by U, Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unsuthorizad reproduction or distribution of this AlA®
Document, or any portion of it, may result in ssvare civil and eriminal paneities, and will be prosecuted to the madmum extent pessible under the laow.
This deturnent was preduced by AlA software Bt 12:57.27 BT on D080 under Oraer Mo 1251627280 which expires on OROT/2018, and |s not for reaale.
Usar Notes: {18331 64608)

1"



§ 6.,6.7 Deposits lost for causes other than the Construction Manager®s negligence or falure to fulfill a specific
responsibility in the Contract Documents.

§B.6.8 Legal, mediation and arbitration costs, including attorneys’ fees, other than those arising from disputes between
the Owner and Construction Manager, reasonably incurred by the Construction Manager after the execution of this
Agreement in the performance of the Work and with the Owner’s prior approval, which shall not be unreasonably
withheld.

§ 6,6.9 Subject to the Owner's prior approval, expenses incurred in accordance with the Construction Manager's
standard written personnel policy for relocation and temporary living allowances of the Construction Manager's
personnel required for the Work,

§ 6.7 Other Costs and Emergencies
§ 6.7.1 Other costs incurred in the performance of the Work if, and to the extent, approved in advanee in wriling by the
Cromer.

§ 8.7.2 Costs mourred in taking action to prevent threatened damage, infury or loss in cese of an emergency affecting the
safety of persons and property, as provided in Section 10.4 of AIA Document A201-2007.

§ 6.7.3 Costs of repainng or correcting damaged or nonconforming Work executed by the Construction Manager,
Subcontractors or suppliers, provided that such damaged or nonconforming Work was not cansed by negligence or
failure to fulfill a specific responsibility of the Construction Manager and only to the extent that the cost of repair ar
cotrection is not recovered by the Construction Manager from insurance, sureties, Subcontractors, suppliers, or others.

§ 8.7.4 The costs described m Sections 6.1 through 6.7 shall be included in the Cost of the Work, notwithstanding any
provision of ATA Document A231-2007 or other Conditions of the Contract which may require the Construction
Manager to pay such costs, uniess such costs are excluded by the provisions of Section 6.8,

§ 8.8 Costs Not To Be Reimbursad
§6.8.1 The Cost of the Work shall not include the items listed below:

.1 Salaries and other compensation of the Construction Manager’s personnel stationed at the Construction
Manager’s principal office or offices other than the site office, except as specifically provided in Section
6.2, ur a5 may be provided m Article 11,

Expenses of the Construction Manager's principal office and offices other than the site office;
Overhiead and general expenses, except as may be expressly included in Sections 6.1 10 6.7;

The Construction Manager’s capital expenses, including interest on the Construction Manager’s capital
employed for the Worl;

Except as provided m Section 6.7.3 of this Agreement, costs due to the neghgence or failure of the
Construction Manager, Subcontractors and suppliers or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of
them or for whose acts any of them may be liable to fulfill a specific responsibility of the Contract,
Any cost not specifically and expressly described in Sections 6.1 to 6.7,

Costs, other than costs included in Change Orders approved by the Owner, that would cause the
Gueranteed Maximum Price to be exceeded; and

8  Caosts for services incurred during the Preconstruction Phase.

m Wbk

~m®

§ 6.9 Discounts, Rebates and Refunds

§6.9.1 Cash discounts obtained on payments made by the Construction Manager shall acerue to the Owner if (1) before
making the payment, the Construction Manager included them in an Application for Payment and received payment
from the Owner, or (2) the Owner has deposited funds with the Construction Manager with which to make payments;
otherwise, cash discounts shall accrue to the Construction Manager. Trade discounts, rebates, refunds and amounis
recerved from sales of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to the Owner, and the Construction Manager shail
make provisions 5o that they can be obtained.

§ 6.9.2 Amounts that accrue to the Owner in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.9.1 shall be credited to the
Owner as a deduction from the Cost of the Work,

AlA Document A133™ - 2008 (formerly A121™CMe - 2003). Copyright © 1981, 2003 and 2008 by The American inetiute of Architects. All rights rezerved.
WARNING: This AlA* Documeant is protectsd by U.8. Copyright Law and Intemational Treatles. Unouthorired reproduction or distribution of this AlA* 12
Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe clvil and eriminal psneities, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the: faw

This documaent wes produced by ALA sofbesms at 12:67,27 ET on 02/06/2018 under Crder Mo. 1251827280 which expires on AT, and i not for resale.

Usar Notas: (1833104808}



§ 6.10 Relsted Party Transactions

§6.10.1 For purposes of Section 6.10, the term "related party® shall mean a parent, subsidiary, effiliate or ather entity
having common ownership or management with the Construction Manager; any entity in which any stockholder in, or
management employee of, the Construction Manager owns any interest in excess of ten percent in the aggregate; or any
person or entity which has the right to control the business or affairs of the Construction Manager. The term "related
party” includes eny member of the immediate family of any person identified above.

§6.10.2 If any of the costs to be reimbursed arise from a transaction between the Construction Manager and a related
party, the Construction Manager shall notify the Owner of the specific nature of the contemnplated transaction, including
the identity of the related party and the anticipated cost to be incurred, before any such transaction is consummated or
cost incnrred  1f the Owner, after such notification, authorizes the proposed transaction, then the cost mewred shall be
mneluded as a cost to be reimbursed, and the Construction Manager shall procure the Work, equipment, goods or service
from the related party, as a Subcontractor, according to the terms of Sections 2.3.2.1, 2.3.2.2 and 2.3.2.3. If the Owner
fuls to authorize the transaction, the Construction Manager shall procure the Work, equipment, goods or service from
some person or entity other than a related party according to the terms of Sections 23.2.1,2.3.2.2 and 2323,

§ 6.11 Accounting Records

The Construction Manager shall keep full and detailed records and accounts related to the cost of the Work and exercise
such controls as may be necessary for proper financial management under this Coniract and to substantiate all costs
incurred The accounting and control systems shall be satisfactory to the Owner. The Owner and the Owner’s auditors
shall, during regular business hours and upon reascnable notice, be afforded access to, and shall be permitted to audit and
copy, the Cunstruction Manager’s records and accounts, including complete documentation supporting accounting
entnies, books, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts, subcontracts, Subcontractor’s proposals, purchass
orders, vouchers, memoranda and other data relating to this Contract. The Construction Manager shall preserve these
records for a period of three years after final payment, or for such longer period as may be required by law,

ARTICLET PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

§ 7.1 Progress Payments

§7.1.1 Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Architect by the Construction Manager and Certificates
for Payment 1ssued by the Architect, the Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Sum to the
Construction Manager as provided below and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 7.1.2 The peniod covered by each Application for Payment shall be one calendar month ending on the last day of the
month, or as follows;

§7.1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received by the Architect not later than the 15th day of a month, the
Owner shall make payment of the certified amount to the Construction Manager not later than the 15th day of the
month. If an Application for Payment is received by the Architect after the application date fixed above, payment shall
be made by the Owner not later than Thirty ( 30 ) days after the Architect receives the Application for Payment.
(Federal, state or local laws may require payment within a certain period of time.)

§ 7.1.4 With each Application for Payment, the Construction Manager shall submit payrolls, petty cash accounts,
receipted invoices or invoices with check vouchers attached, and any other evidence required by the Owner or Architect
to demonstrate that cash disbursements already made by the Construction Manager on account of the Cosl of the Waork
equal or exceed progress payments already received by the Construction Manager, less that portion of those payments
aftributable to the Construction Manager’s Fee, plus payrolls for the period covered by the present Application for
Payment

§ 7.1.5 Each Application for Payment shall be based on the most recent schedule of values submitted by the Construction
Manager in accordance with the Contract Documents. The schedule of values shall allocate the entire Guaranteed
Maximum Price among the various portions of the Work, except that the Construction Manager’s Fee shall be shown as
& single separate item. The schedule of values shall be prepared in such form and supported by such data to substantiate
its sccuracy as the Architect may require. This schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as a basis for
reviewing the Construction Manager's Applications for Payment.

Init AlA Document A133™ — 2008 (formerly A121 ™CMe — 2003). Copyright & 1581, 2003 and 2009 by The American instiute of Architects. All rights reserved.
¥ WARNING: This AIA® Documant is protected by U.8, Copyright Law and Infernafional Trasties, Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIAT 13
Document, or any portion of it, may result In severa civil and eriminal penafties, and will be prosecuted ko the maxlmum sxient possible under the Lo,
! This cosument was produced by AlA sofbeare at 12:87-27 ET on 02052010 under Crder No, 1251827260 which expires on 0&Q7/2018, and ia not for resale,
User Notes: (1833104608)



it

§ 7.1.6 Applications for Payment shall show the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work as of the end of the
period covered by the Application for Payment. The percentage of completion shall be the lesser of (1) the percentage of
that portion of the Work which has actually been completed, or (2) the percentage obtained by dividing (a) the expense
that has actually been incurred by the Construction Manager on account of that portion of the Work for which the
Construction Manager has made or intends to make ectual payment prior to the next Application for Payment by (b) the
share of the Guaranteed Maximum Price allocated to that portion of the Work in the schedule of values,

§7.1.7 Subject to other provisions of the Contract Documents, the amount of each progress payment shall be computed
as follows:

1 Take that portion of the Guaranteed Maximum Price properly allocable to completed Work as determined
by muluplying the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work by the share of the Guaranteed
Maximum Price allocated to that portion of the Work in the schedule of values. Pending final
determumation of cost to the Owner of changes in the Work, amounts not in dispute shall be included as
provided m Section 7.3.9 of ALA Decument A201-2007,

2  Add that portion of the Guaranteed Maximum Price properly allocable to materials and equipment
delivered and surtably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work, or if approved in
advance by the Uwner, suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing;

3 Add the Construction Manager’s Fee, less retainage of TEN percent ( 10 %). The Construction Manager’s
Fee shall be computed upon the Cost of the Work at the rate stated in Section 5.1 or, if the Construction
Manager's Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that Section, shall be an amount that bears the same ratio to that
fixed-sum fee as the Cost of the Work bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Wark
upon its completion; 10% less retainage until 50% completion, no further retainage to be withheld
resultmg in a 5% aggregate retainage at project end,

4 Subtract retamage of TEN percent { 10 %) from that portion of the Work that the Construction Manager
self-performs, 10% less retainage until 50% completion, no further retainage to be withheld resulting in a
5% aggregate retainage at project end.

Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner;

Subtraet the shortfall, if any, indicated by the Construction Manager in the documentation required by

Section 7 1 4 to substantiate prior Applications for Payment., or resulting from errors subsequently

discovered by the Owner's auditors in such documentation; and

.1 Subtract amounts, if any, for which the Architect has withheld or nullified a Certificate for Payment as
provided m Section 2 5 of ATA Document A201-2007.

®

§7.1.B The Owner and Construction Manager shall agree upon (1) a mutually acceptable procedure for review and
approval of payments to Subcontractors and (2) the percentage of retainage held on Subcontracts, and the Construction
Manager shall execute subcontracts in accordance with those agreements.

§ 7.1.9 Exocept with the Owner®s pnor approval, the Construction Manager shall not make advance payments to supplisrs
for materials or equipment which have not been delivered and stored at the site.

§7.1.10 In taking action on the Construction Manager’s Applications for Payment, the Architect shall be entitled to rely
on the accuracy and completeness of the information furnished by the Construction Manager and shall not be deemed to
represent that the Architect has made a detailed examination, audit or arithmetic verification of the documentation
submitted in accordance with Section 7.1.4 or other supporting data; that the Architect has made exhaustive or
continuous on-site mspections; or that the Architect has made examinations to ascertan how or for what purposes the
Construction Manager has used amounts previously paid on account of the Contract. Such examinations, audits and
vertications, if required by the Owner, will be performed by the Owner’s auditors acting in the sole interest of the
Owner.

§ 7.2 Final Payment
§ 7.2.1 Fnal payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be made by the Owner to the
Construction Manager when
A the Construction Menager has fully performed the Contract except for the Construction Menager's
responsibility to correct Work as provided in Section 12.2.2 of AIA Document A201-2007, and to satisfy
other requirements, if any. which extend beyond final payment;
2 the Construction Manager has submitted a final accounting for the Cost of the Work and a final
Application for Payment; and

AlA Document A123™ = 2008 (formerly A121 ™ChMe - 2003). Copyright @ 1981, 2003 and 2009 by The American Instiute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA® Documant Is protectad by LS. Copyright Law and Intermational Treatles. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ALA®
Documant, or any portion of It, may resuft in severe civil and criminal panatties, and will be prosecutad to the maximum extent possible under the law.
This decumeant was procuced by AL software at 125727 ET on 02052012 under Ovder No. 1251827280 which explres an 0BQ7/2018, and & not for ressie.
User Notas: {18331 04608)




.3 afinal Centificate for Payment has been issued by the Architect.

The Owner’s final payment to the Construction Manager shall be made no later than 30 days after the issuance of the
Architect’s final Certificate for Payment, or as follows;

§7.2.2 The Owner’s auditors will review and report in writing on the Construction Manager’s final accounting within 30
days after delivery of the final accounting to the Architect by the Construction Manager. Based upon such Cost of the
Work as the Owner’s auditors report 1o be substantiated by the Construction Manager's final accounting, and provided
the other conditions of Section 7.2.1 have been met, the Architect will, within seven days afler receipt of the written
report of the Owner's audrtors, either issue to the Owner a final Certificate for Payment with a copy to the Construction
Manager, or notify the Construction Manager and Owner in writing of the Architect’s reasons for withholding a
certificate as provided m Section 9.5.1 of the AIA Document A201-2007. The time periods stated in this Section
supersede those stated mn Sechion 9.4.1 of the ATA Document A201-2007. The Architect is not responsible for verifying
the accuracy of the Construction Manager®s final accounting,

§ 7.2.3 If the Owner’s audrtors report the Cost of the Work as sobstantiated by the Constroction Manager’s final
accounting to be less than claimed by the Construction Manager, the Construction Manager shall be entitled to request
mediation of the disputed amount without seeking an initial decision pursuant to Section 5.2 of A201-2007. A request
for mediation shall be made by the Construction Manager within 30 days after the Construction Manager’s receipt of a
copy of the Architect’s final Certificate for Payment. Failure to request mediation within this 30-day period shall result
in the substantiated amount reported by the Owner’s anditors becoming binding on the Construction Manager. Pending a
final resolution of the disputed amourt, the Owner shall pay the Construction Manager the amount certified in the
Architect’s final Certiheate for Payment.

§7.24 Tf, subsequent to final payment and at the Owner’s request, the Construction Manager incurs costs described
Section 6 1 1 and not excluded by Section 6.8 to correct defective or nonconforming Work, the Owner shall reimburse
the Construction Manager such costs and the Construction Manager”s Fee apphicable thereto on the same basis as if such
costs had been meurred prior to final payment, but not in excess of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. If the Construction
Manager has participated in savings as provided in Section 5.2.1, the amount of such savings shall be recalculated and
appmpnﬁtecmdﬂgivmtnthﬂﬁwmr'mﬂmnhh:gthemmuummbemidbytheﬂwwtﬂﬂmﬂunmmim
Manager,

ARTICLE& INSURANCE AND BONDS

For all phases of the Project, the Construction Manager and the Owner shall purchase and maintain insurance, and the
Construction Manager shall provide bonds as set forth in Article 11 of AIA Document A201-2007,

(State bonding requirements, if any, and limits of Bability for insurance required in Article 11 af AL4 Document
A201-2007.)

Type of Insurance or Bond Limit of Liability or Bond Amount ($0.00)

ARTICLE9 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

§9.1 Any Claim between the Owner and Construction Manager shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions set
forth in thais Article 9 and Article 15 of A201-2007. However, for Claims arising from or relating fo the Construction
Manager’s Preconstruction Phase services, no decision by the Initial Decision Maker shall be required as a condition
precedent to mediation or binding dispute resolution, and Section 9.3 of this Agreement shall not apply.

§ 9.2 For any Claim subject to, but not resnlved by mediation pursnant to Section 15.3 of ALA Document A201-2007, the
method of binding dispute resolution shall be as follows:

(Check the appropriate box., If the Owner and Corstruction Manager do not select a method of binding dispute
resolution below, or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation,
Claims will be resalved by litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction.)

Init. AIA Document A133™ - 2008 (formerly A121™CMe - 2003), Copyright & 1981, 2003 and 2008 oy The Amesicar Instiue of Architects. All rights reserved.
n WARNING: Thiz AlA® Document Is protectsd by U.S. Copyright Law and Internstionsl Trasties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AR 15
Documant, or mny portion of i, may resuit in severs civil and eriminal penafties, and will be prosscuted to the makimum axtent possible under the lew,

/ This document was produsad by AlA software at 128727 ET an 02082018 under Order Ne 1 251627280 which axpires an 08/07/2018, and iz not for rasale.
Usar Notes: (1833104808)



[X]  Arbitration pursuant to Section 15.4 of AIA Document A201-2007

[ 1 Litgation in a court of competent jurisdiction
[ 1  Other (Specifiy

§ 8.3 Initial Decision Maker

The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker pursuant to Section 15.2 of AIA Document A201-2007 for Claims
ansing from or relating to the Construction Manager's Construction Phase services, unless the parties appoint below
another indrvidual, not & party to the Agreement, to serve as the Initial Decision Maker,

(Tf the parties mutually agree, insert the name, address and other comtact information of the Initial Decision Maker, if
ather than the Archutect )

Marc Wilkins, Dinector
7400 Baucum Pike
Morth Little Rock, AR 72116

ARTICLE 10 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

§ 10.1 Termination Prior to Establishment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price

§ 10.1.1 Prior to the esecation of the Guaranteed Meximum Price Amendment, the Owner may terminate this Agreement
upon not less than seven davs’ written notice to the Construction Manager for the Owner's convenience and without
cause, and the Construction Manager may terminate this Agreement, upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the
Owner, for the reasons set forth in Section 14.1.1 of A201-2007,

§ 10.1.2 In the event of termmation of this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1.1, the Construction Manager shall be
equitably compensated for Preconstruction Phase services performed prior to receipt of a notice of termination. In no
event shall the Construction Manager’s compensation under this Section exceed the compensation set forth in Section
41

§ 10.1.3 If the Owner termunates the Contract pursuant to Section 10.1.1 after the commencement of the Construction
Phase but prior to the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Owner shall pay to the Construction
Manager an amount caleulated as follows, which amount shall be in addition to any compensation paid to the
Construction Manager under Section 10.1.2:

.1 Take the Cost of the Work incurred by the Construction Manager to the date of termination;

2  Add the Construction Manager’s Fee computed upon the Cost of the Work to the date of termination at
the rate stated in Seetion 5.1 or, if the Construction Manager's Fee is stated as a fived sum in that Section,
an amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum Fee as the Cost of the Work at the time of
termination bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion; and

3 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner for Construction Phase services.

The Owner shall also pay the Construction Manager fair compensation, either by purchase or rental at the election of the
Owmer, for eny equipment owned by the Construction Manager which the Owner elects to retain and which is not
otherwise included m the Cost of the Work under Section 10.1.3.1. To the extent that the Owner ¢lects to take legal
assignment of subcontracts and purchase orders (ncluding rental agreements), the Construction Manager shall, as o
condition of receiving the payments referred to in this Article 10, execute and deliver all such papers and take all such
steps, including the legal assignment of such subcontracts and other contractual rights of the Construction Manager, as
the Owner may require for the purpose of fully vesting in the Owner the rights and benefits of the Construction Manager
under such subcontracts or purchase orders. All Subcontracts, purchase orders and rental agreements entered into by the
Construction Manager will contain provisions allowing for assignment to the Owner as described above,

If the Owner accepts assignment of subcontracts, purchese orders or rental agreements as described above, the Owner
will reimburse or indemmnify the Construction Manager for all costs arising under the subcontract, purchase order or
rental agreement, if those costs would have been reimbursable as Cost of the Work if the contract had not been
terminated. If the Owner chooses not to acoept assignment of any subcontract, purchase order or rental agreement that

AlA Document A133™ — 2008 (formerly A121 ™OMc - 2003} Copyright © 1991, 2003 and 2008 by The American Inssitute of Architects. All rights reserved.
WARNING: This AIA* Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treatles. Unaethorized reproduction or distribution of this ALA® 1§
Docummnt, or any portion of i, may result In 2evers civil and criminal penatties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent pozsible under the law.

Thie dosument wes produced by AlA softwane at 12:57:27 ET on 02/05/2018 under Order No.1251B27260 which expites on D&O7/2019, and is not for resale,

User Notes; (1833134608)




would have constituted a Cost of the Work had this agreement not been termunated, the Construction Manager will
terminate the subcontract, purchase order or rental agreement and the Owner will pay the Construction Manager the
costs necessarily incurred by the Construction Manager because of such termination,

§ 10.2 Termination Subsequent to Establishing Guaranteed Maximum Price
Following execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment and subject to the provisions of Section 10.2.1 and
10 2 2 below, the Contract may be terminated as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A201-2007.

§ 10.2.1 If the Owner terminates the Contract after execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the amount
payable to the Construction Manager pursuant to Sections 14.2 and 14.4 of A201-2007 shall not exceed the amount the
Construction Manager would otherwise have received pursuant to Sections 10.1.2 and 10.1.3 of this Agreement.

§ 10.2.2 If the Construction Manager terminates the Contract after execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price
Amendment, the amount payable to the Construction Manager under Section 14.1.3 of A201-2007 shall not exceed the
amount the Construchon Manager would otherwise have received under Sections 10.1.2 and 10.1.3 above, except that
the Construction Manager's Fee shall be calculated as if the Work had been fully completed by the Construction
Manager, utihizing as necessary a reasonable estimate of the Cost of the Work for Work not actually completed.

§ 10.3 Suspension

The Work may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Aricle 14 of AIA Document A201-2007. In such case, the
Guaranteed Maximum Price and Contract Time shall be increased as provided in Section 14.3.2 of ATA Document
A201-2007, except that the term "profit" shall be understood to mean the Construction Manager’s Fee as described in
Sections 5 1 and 5 3.5 of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 11 MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS
§ 11.1 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those i A201-2007.

§ 11.2 Owmership and Use of Documents
Section 1 5 of A201-2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases.

§ 11.3 Governing Law
Sectuon 13,1 of A201-2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases.

§ 11.4 Assignment

The Owner und Construction Manager, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns and legal
representatives to this Agreement. Nedther the Owner nor the Construction Manager shall assign this A greement without
the written consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing financing for the
Project if the lender agrees to assume the Owner’s rights and obligations imder this Agreement. Except as provided in
Section 13 2 2 of A201-2007, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent
of the other. [f either party attempts to make such an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless
rernamn legally responsibie for all obligations under the Contract.

§ 11.5 Other provisions'

ARTICLE 12 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

§ 12.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Construction Manager
and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be
emended only by written instrument signed by both Owner and Construction Manager.

§ 12.2 The following documents comprise the Agreement:
A ATA Document A133-2009, Standard Form of Agreement Between Ovmer and Construction Manager as
Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a Guarameed Maximnm
Price
2 AlA Document A201-2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction
2 AIA Document E201™-2007, Digital Data Protocol Exhibit, if completed, or the following:

AlA Document A133™ — 2008 (fermarly A121 ™CMe = 2003), Copyright @ 1881, 2003 end 2009 by The American Instfute of Architeots, All rights reserved,
WARNING: Thiz AIA"Y Documant is protectad by U.S. Copyright Lew and Internationsl Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® 17
Documant, or any portlan of if, may result in severs civii snd criminal panaities, and will be prosecuted (o the magimum extent possible undor the kew,

Thin document was producsd by AlA soffware 8t 125727 ET on 02/08/201 9 under Order Mo 12518272680 whiah sxplres on 08072018, and & not for resale.

User Notas: (1833104508)




4 AlA Document E202T™-2008, Building Information Modeling Protocol Exhabit, if completed, or the
following:

& Other docurments:
(List ather documents, if any, forming part of the Agreement.j

ﬂnshgu‘ncmmismﬁemdimﬂasafﬂ:edaymdymfmmﬁ%; ZH

OWNER (Signature) CONSTRUCTION MANAGER (Signature)
I Mare Willans Nocth Little Rock Wastewnter Utility Clark McGlothin, President
(Prmted name and nile} {(Printed name and title)

it. AlA Document AT33™ - 2009 (formery A121 ™CMe - 2003). Copyright © 1381, 2003 ard 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved.
In WARNING; This AIA® Document is protacted by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorlzed reproduction or distribution of this AlA™ 18
Documant, or any portion of It, may result In severs clvil and criminal penaes, and will be prosecuted fo the maximum extent possible undar the low.
{ This document was produced by AL software &l 12:57-27 ET on 0205208 under Cnder Mo, 1251627260 which expires on D8T7/2018, and (s not for resaie.
User Notes: {1833104608)



(6)

SYSTEM CONTROL AND DATA ACQUISITION (SCADA) UPGRADE

SCADA systems use cellular service to transmit data and commands between our operations
staff and remote equipment. In its simplest form, SCADA will send a failure alarm notice to
designated staff. More advanced SCADA features can allow an operator to trouble shoot the
cause of a failure and even to operate equipped facilities from a remote location. NLRW
currently has alarm monitoring capabilities at 66 pump stations which were designed to operate
on a 3g network. Telecommunication companies are in the process of upgrading their networks
to 5g capabilities and will no longer support communications equipment with 3g capability.

This will require all 66 pump station SCADA units to be upgraded or replaced.

Staff have compared the costs to upgrade the existing “Omni” units with costs to replace the
units with components that communicate with the “Ignition” SCADA software which is currently

being used at our water reclamation facilities.

Total costs for replacement of all 66 units is $36,600 and the annual cost for data

communication is $9,504/year.

This item is included in the 2019 Budget in the amount of $80,000.

ACTION REQUESTED:

Authorize staff to replace 66 existing SCADA units at a cost of $36,600 for equipment and an annual

data communication cost of $9,504/year.



(7)

PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT OF SOLAR POWER GENERATION

Staff have met with representatives from two energy services companies (ESCOs) involved in
the installation of solar power generation arrays through the “Energy Performance Contracting
(EPC)” project delivery method. EPC is a financing mechanism used to pay for energy
efficiency improvements all at once that are then paid back through the energy savings. The
Arkansas EPC program was made available to municipal utilities in 2015. NLRW spends
approximately $900,000 annually for electricity and has 91 electric accounts. 63 accounts are
with Entergy, 27 with North Little Rock Electric and 1 with First Electric. NLRW also has land
available at the Five Mike Creek WRF which is suitable for a solar array sizeable enough to

offset all of our electric power costs from Entergy.

Preliminary assessments indicate that NLRW could realize significant savings in energy

charges with an EPC project that pays for itself 100% using money that is already in the budget.

ACTION REQUESTED:

Staff requests direction regarding whether or not the Committee is interested in hearing
presentations from Energy Services Companies.



